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panding horizons
globally

e

The world felt that in a retrograde economy, growth is impossible. We didn’t.

While countries, economies & industries reeled under the impact of the recession, 

we continued to climb the growth trajectory – ensuring growth in value 

for every stakeholder.

We not only sustained our position of leadership in various segments but 

also increased our market share in India. Exports have been the primary 

contributor to our growth. Over the past year, we have further established 

our presence in the key markets of USA, UK and Africa, 

while adding a few more geographies to our reach.

As we step into a new year, we aim to surpass our current achievements, 

and ensure that no matter what, the economic slowdown will not slow us down. 
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The achievement of targets is not the 
only parameter by which we measure our 
performance. Rather by how we have gone 
beyond and surpassed our objectives.  

02 | Repro India Limited
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

   expectations
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• Achieved a 58% growth in sales

• Achieved a 6% growth in PAT

• Gross Profit amounted to 15%

• Achieved a growth of 108% in the export business

• Operating Margin grew by 22%

• Established a NEW PRINTING FACILITY in the SURAT SEZ

• Received the CAPEXIL SPECIAL EXPORT AWARD for 

outstanding success in the realm of exports
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Our financial successes reflect our 
continuous focus on improving operational 
efficiencies while investing in our people, 
technology and new markets. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Profit After Tax (PAT)

Earning Per Share (EPS)

Operating Margin

Export Sales
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  performance

*EPS calculated on the basis of weighted average 
number of shares during the year
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We have leveraged our increased 
capacities with a comprehensive 
spectrum of service solutions to meet the 
requirements of corporates & publishers 
across continents and make in-roads into 
new geographies.
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GLOBAL REACH

USA MARKET
• Opened a new office in the USA.

• Opened opportunities with leading publishers like Random House, Scholastic, Wolters Kluwer, 

Pearson, Oxford University Press, etc.

• Strategic tie-up being planned for a print facility in the USA.

UK / EU MARKET
• New opportunities opened up at the London Book Fair

• Forayed into new geographies – Belgium, Germany & Netherlands

• Added new clients – Sanoma WSOY, Infitas Learning, Flametree Publishing & Nelson Thornes

AFRICA MARKET
• A strong presence in over 10 countries across Africa, which include Nigeria, Ghana, South Africa, etc. 

• A client base of the top 20 African publishers like Maskewmiller Longman, Heinemann, Evans, 

Educational Book Publisher, Ben & Co., etc.  

• Printed & supplied millions of books across African countries and worked on World Bank funded projects 

• Canada • USA • Mexico • UK • France • Belgium • Germany • Italy • Spain • East Coast of Africa 

• West Coast of Africa • South Coast of Africa • Dubai • Pakistan • India • Sri Lanka • Australia • Russia

  new markets
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With a focussed strategy towards expanding geographies, today we have footprints in several countries, with a client 

base that includes the world’s leading publishers.

GLOBAL REACH
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From content creation to product delivery, 
we offer services at every stage of the 
value chain, ensuring our solutions are 
of the highest quality and in tune with 
evolving markets.
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SERVICES
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Design
Our team of designers, writers, illustrators and 

page compositors are equipped with the latest 

design software and hardware. Our value chain 

begins with the idea and ends with print-ready 

files.      

Pre-Press
Our digital pre-press centre brings together highly 

skilled professionals, with state-of-the-art 

processing equipment. The activity encompasses 

the entire flow from pre-media to plate.

Web Press  

Our web presses are the most evolved contem-

porary print machines to ensure that large 

volumes can be printed in the fastest possible time.

Sheet-Fed     

Our 4-colour and 5-colour sheet-fed machines are 

customised for high-end production values - where 

a printed copy makes the final impression.

Post Press
The finishing touch is added by the high-end, fully 

automated cutting and binding lines that offer 

a range of binding options - from perfect binding, 

to saddle stitching, spiral and section sewing.             

Logistics
Our proximity to the port, automated processes, 

multiple dispatch bays and strategic partnerships 

with shipping services enable a seamless delivery 

process in the shortest possible time.

  to perfection
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CUSTOMER

REPROOFFSET BOOK PRINTER

CUSTOMER
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REPRO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS – Print-on-Demand (POD)
Most companies fragment their potential – for every $1 they spend on printing, they spend $6 on other functions 

(warehousing, administrative, etc.). They end up losing time, productivity and sometimes even clients.

Whether 4-colour or single-colour, adoption books or reprints, from 1 to a million, our Print-on-Demand service allows us 

to deliver the communication flexibly to customers.

Print-on-Demand Advantages 

• Integration into clients’ systems

• Predictability & Scalability

• Zero on-hand Inventory, no obsolescence, 

no warehousing

• End-to-End unified process  – Marketing, 

Storefront, Fulfilment & Logistics & 

Customer Service

• Content Management for Title Lifecycle

• Consistent Quality

• IPR Protection 

• Optimized Print Cycle 

• Fulfilment & Distribution 

• Order Management System

PRODUCTS

Warehouse

WHOLESALER / DISTRIBUTOR

Bookstore

Wholesaler / Distributor

CONVENTIONAL 
PUBLISHING MODEL

REPRO 
PUBLISHING MODEL

BOOKSTORE
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New Content/ 
Revisions

Delivery Receipt/ 
Invoice PaymentPlace Order via 

the WebCLIENT

REPRO

Capture Order

Packaging/ 
Despatch

End User Distributor/ Retainer Client Warehouse

Print Book

Invoice Generated

Storage

Content 
Repository
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Print-on-Demand Services 

• Storefronts

• Preparing Store & Content 

• Preparing Fulfilment Facility

• Fulfilment by Web

• Defining the SLA Matrix    

CUSTOMER

INTEGRATED PROCESS WORKFLOW
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PRODUCTS
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INNOVATIVE FORMATS

Magic painting Pick and paint
Paint with water Sticker book Press-out books

Write and wipe Mystic pencil
Rub and colour

EDUCATION BOOKS

Each year we meet the requirements of many international educational publishers in Africa, EU, UK, USA and India. 

Right from paper solutions that lead to enhanced products, to design solutions, we design and print a range of education 

& activity books. 

Clients: Oxford University Press, Longman, Macmillan, UP PLC, Sam-Woode, Heinemann, Jeevandeep Prakashan, 

McGraw-Hill, Pearson, etc.
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Colouring and activity books

Punching/Die-cut
FoilingHologramsGlittering

Perforation Blister packs
UV Coin-reactive

Colouring books

CHILDREN’S BOOKS

Having understood the mass-market segment and the pricing structure that drives it, we continually innovate products on 

behalf of our clients to meet their pricing needs.

Clients: Paragon, Modern, Igloo, Playmore, etc.

20900712_Repro AR 2k8-9_pg1-32.indd   Sec1:1520900712_Repro AR 2k8-9_pg1-32.indd   Sec1:15 13/06/09   5:21 PM13/06/09   5:21 PM



PRODUCTS

16 | Repro India Limited

CATALOGUES & MAGAZINES

We print large runs of magazines and other publications, for some of India’s largest media and publishing houses. 

We provide our clients with all the solutions they need to the tiniest detail, including a wide range of paper options suited 

to their needs. 

Clients: New Woman, Hi Blitz, Cine Blitz, Business Barons, Ok India, Gladrags, etc.
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ANNUAL REPORTS

We have been leaders in the Annual Report segment in India for the last 15 years. Our end-to-end service solution begins 

when our team takes a brief, and ends when the last copy is mailed. This comprehensive service spectrum has resulted in 

a growth rate of 40% in this segment. 

Clients: Tata Steel, Wipro, HUL, Vedanta, DLF, Infosys, Patni Computers, Mindtree, JSW Steel, Rolta, Ashok Leyland, etc. 
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We have extended our capacities to 
meet an increasing demand by adding 
on machines, IT systems and high-end 
workflows. This is in addition to the setting 
up of a facility in the SEZ at Surat - which 
was operational in a record time of 
six months.

18 | Repro India Limited
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INFRASTRUCTURE

MUMBAI FACILITY
• Situated near the Port of Mumbai

• One of the most modern in India 

• Equipped with state-of the-art web, sheet-fed   

and Print-on-Demand presses

• Spread across 1,50,000 sq. feet 

• Can handle any volume, from a single book, 

to a million copies

SURAT FACILITY 
• A 5,000 sqmt. state-of-the-art facility at Surat in a Special Economic Zone (SEZ)

• The facility has a combination of web presses, sheet-fed presses with complementary CTP and binding lines 

• Also has a battery of inline hologram, label pasting and shrink-wrapping machines

• Has the capacity to produce 100 million books per annum

• Can despatch upto 50 containers per month

The facility at Navi Mumbai

Top:The SEZ facility at Surat; Below: Corporate Office
in Mumbai

   capacities
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A new facility at the SURAT SEZ
Repro has invested close to USD 10 million to set up a facility at Surat in a Special Economic Zone (SEZ) to give a further 

focus to its export. The facility workflow has been designed based on a synchronous flow that enables the seamless 

movement of material through all stages of production. This will give our customers in overseas markets an additional 

cost and time benefit. 

INFRASTRUCTURE

20 | Repro India Limited
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HIGH-TECHNOLOGY PRINT SOLUTIONS
• CTP with thermal plate processor & baking unit, enabled with web approval software: Capacity – 36 plates per hour

• Web presses for text printing of different cut-offs: Capacity – 35MT paper convertibility per day

• Sheet fed 4-colour for cover printing, fully automated computerised plate control (cpc) enabled

• High-speed perfect binding line: Capacity – 7,000 books per hour 

• High-speed saddle stitching line: Capacity – 12,000 copies per hour 

• Fully automatic section sewing machine: Capacity – 9,000 sections per hour

• Storage capacity for paper reels up to 700 metric tons at any point of time

• Battery of finishing machines like UV Coater, hologram & label pasting and shrink wrapping machines

• In-line quality testing systems

INFRASTRUCTURE

22 | Repro India Limited

20900712_Repro AR 2k8-9_pg1-32.indd   Sec1:2220900712_Repro AR 2k8-9_pg1-32.indd   Sec1:22 13/06/09   5:21 PM13/06/09   5:21 PM



Annual Report | 23

20900712_Repro AR 2k8-9_pg1-32.indd   Sec1:2320900712_Repro AR 2k8-9_pg1-32.indd   Sec1:23 13/06/09   5:21 PM13/06/09   5:21 PM



24 | Repro India Limited

We have streamlined operations, optimized 
quality & enhanced efficiencies, all in an 
effort to increase productivity and ensure 
synergy in all processes. 
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HIGH-END PROCESS FLOWS
We have successfully adopted and integrated IT Systems 

that have given us several advantages.

Some highlights include:

• Successfully rolled out ERP implementation with 

EFI Hagen OA MIS System

• Achieved 360° intelligent end-to-end process integration

• Common information base for transactions as well as MIS

• Better equipped for managing customer business needs

• Access to analysed information and more process 

oriented operations

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

COMPLETE PROCESS INTEGRATION

   technology
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HR initiatives have been implemented with 
an objective to provide comprehensive 
training, ensure continuous improvement, 
boost motivation and empower our 
human capital.
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HR INIT IATIVES

• As a part of ongoing HR initiatives, we launched 

UDAAN - an employee relationship programme for 

all Reproites.

• We instituted induction programmes to familiarize 

new recruits with the company’s philosophy, 

procedures & practices.

• Samwwad - A new initiative which encourages 

interdepartmental co-operation & collaboration, 

has been successfully completed across Repro.

• Initiated a performance management system to 

address institutional needs as well as the needs 

of staff members while creating a performance 

oriented culture.

• Developed a “Personal Empowerment Program” 

at Silvassa for managers and Heads of Department, 

which included training on safety, paper defects, 

troubleshooting and team building.

• Organised a mega event on the occasion 

of Dassera wherein the entire Repro Family 

participated to celebrate Dassera with 

competitions, games and a Satyanarayan 

Mahapuja.

We believe that people have tremendous untapped potential to perform better. We help 
people to make the most of this hidden strength. One of the main objectives of HR is to build 
people capabilities to drive sustainable business growth. The Company believes in investing 
in people to develop and expand their capability, based on continuous learning 
and improvement. 

   a vision for our people
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New geographies to be explored. New 
solutions to be innovated. New strategies 
to be implemented. And new benchmarks 
to be set. We are on the verge of a new 
phase of growth and expansion.

28 | Repro India Limited
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FUTURE

Economic forecasts may predict continuing 

challenges. But we remain confident of 

growth and success.

Having seen our strategies overcome 

obstacles presented by a sluggish 

economy, we are confident of bettering our 

performance in the future financial years.

India is well on its way to becoming a 

preferred educational hub not just for 

Indian publishers but also global players. 

It is predicted to grow at an astonishing 

pace and be worth more than $1.2 billion 

by 2012. We expect to see greater growth 

not just in our existing markets but newer 

markets as well.

Here’s to a great & successful future!
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    future
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholder,

 

It’s time once again to review the year gone by. And 

time also to reflect on our key strategies, to enhance 

our strengths and to rise to our challenges.

 

The last year has been a challenging year globally. 

The worldwide slowdown has affected economies 

across continents and has resulted in companies 

cutting costs, reducing overheads and overall striving 

to achieve status quo, if not profitability. The good 

news is that at Repro, though we have  felt the 

impact of this slowdown in certain areas, we have 

successfully been able to counter it by strengthening 

our presence in the African and the Indian markets. 

By implementing strategic and tactical initiatives we 

have been able to increase efficiencies and thereby 

get better returns on every rupee spent.

 

One of the principal strategies which we had adopted 

at Repro some time ago has helped us do well during 

this period. Our strong presence in education – being 

a segment which is virtually ‘recession-proof’, has 

continued to grow – both in the domestic as well as 

international markets.

The situation in the global economy has resulted  in 

several publishers demanding better services at 

lower prices. We have been able to counter this by 

implementing key strategies. Long-term contracts 

with key paper manufacturers have resulted in 

substantial savings in raw material costs. This cost 

saving has not only given us a strategic edge over 

competitors but has also enabled us to pass on 

the economies of scale to customers, and thereby 

offer better pricing without compromising on our 

profitability.

 

The setting up and implementing of a robust electronic 

workflow has also enabled us to dramatically 

increase efficiencies. Through intelligent tracking of 

raw material inventory, work-in-progress projects 

and finished goods, we have been able to reduce 

costs and therefore increase the profitability of every 

project undertaken.

 

The setting up of the Surat SEZ has been another 

major achievement of the year gone by. Equipped with 

some of the latest print and digital print technology, 

the location in Surat, a Special Economic Zone (SEZ), 

has given us the edge in terms of export markets. 

The cost efficiencies we have achieved through this 

has further driven up our margins and enabled us to 

maintain our pricing advantage in the global markets.

On the marketing front too, we have achieved several 

breakthroughs. In addition to continuing our existing 

Equipped with some of the 

latest print and digital print 

technology, the location in 

Surat, a Special Economic Zone 

(SEZ), has given us the edge in 

terms of export markets.
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contracts with current customers – which remains 

a matter of pride reflecting as it does continued 

customer satisfaction – we have also tied up newer 

contracts with customers in Africa, India, USA and 

UK. Amongst these are McGraw-Hill, Pearson, Oxford 

University Press, Longman, UP PLC, Jeevandeep 

Prakashan, Tata Steel, Wipro, Infosys, etc.

 

In addition to our existing product mix, which 

encompasses comprehensive services to publishers 

and corporates, we have begun a new stream of 

business. In keeping with the demands of the global 

market for ‘just-in-time’ solutions that enable our 

clients to reduce inventory and manage obsolescence 

more efficiently, we have strengthened our services 

in the area of ‘digital printing’ – or Print-on-Demand. 

This solution enables our customers to print smaller 

quantities as required while still maintaining the 

economies of large runs. This also gives customers 

flexibility in terms of their print requirements.

With all these initiatives, I am happy to inform you 

that your company has successfully risen to the 

challenge of the recession, and even in this period, 

is able to report a growth in both turnover and profit.

 

As we enter a new year that may well be as 

challenging as the year gone by, we are confident 

we will maintain this growth trajectory. I would like 

to thank you for confidence in the company and the 

support you  have showed us. And I look forward to 

the coming year with optimism.

Warm regards,

Vinod Vohra

Chairman
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Financial Highlights

			    Rs. in Lacs (Except Ratios)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

1. Sales 23,803 15,091 12,927 11,164 8,373

2. Gross Profit (PBIDT) 3,560 2,912 2,239 2,202 1,257

Gross Profit as % of Income 15% 19% 17% 20% 15%

3. Interest 812 428 357 399 285

4. Depreciation 795 638 558 420 369

5. Profit Before Tax 1,953 1,847 1,324 1,384 603

6. Provision for Tax 301 291 379 513 157

7. Net Profit (PAT) 1,652 1,555 944 871 446

8. Net Worth 10,957 9,634 8,369 7,669 3,153

9. Fixed Assets - Gross Block 16,769 11,535 10,467 8,310 7,227

10. Long Term Loans Outstanding 3,646 309 856 1,390 1,934

11. Long Term Loans Repayment 298 540 540 580 447

12. Debt Equity Ratio 0.33 0.03 0.10 0.18 0.61

13. Earning Per Share (EPS) 15.05 14.24 9.01 10.09* 5.67

14. Cash Earning Per Share (CEPS) 22.29 20.94 14.35 14.97* 10.38

15. Return on Net Worth (RONW) 15% 16% 11% 11% 14%

*	 EPS is calculated on the basis of weighted average number of shares during the year.
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Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixteenth 
Annual Report of your Company together with the 
audited Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of the 
Company for the year ended on March 31, 2009.

Financial Results

(Rs. In Lacs)
Year ended March 31,

2009 2008

Sales 23,803 15,091

Profit before interest, 
depreciation and taxation 3,560 2,912

Financial Expenses 812 428

Depreciation 795 638

Profit before tax 1,953 1,847

Provision for Current Year Tax - 290

Provision for Deferred Tax 276 (29)

Fringe Benefit Tax 55 32

Wealth Tax 1 -

Taxation for earlier year (30) (2)

Profit after Tax 1,652 1,555

Transfer to General Reserve 165 117

Proposed Dividend 262 210

Tax on Dividend 45 36

Performance review

Your Company during the last fiscal year has excelled 
tremendously in the area of exports. Sales have increased 
from Rs. 15,091 Lacs in 2008 to Rs. 23,803 Lacs in 2009 
showing a growth rate of 58% . This is driven mainly on 
account of growth of export business which accounts for 
64 % of our total business.

Not considering the foreign exchange fluctuation loss of Rs. 
15.35 crores, there would have been a growth of 127% in 
Profit After Tax (PAT) this year and the PAT of Rs. 13.99 crores 
in 2008 would have been Rs. 31.87 crores in 2009. EPS has 
grown from Rs. 15 per share to Rs. 16 per share. 

Directors’ Report

We are pleased to inform to that the Surat SEZ facility is 
fully operational now.  This year, effective from April 2009 
your Company is utilizing the full capacity of Surat.

The Surat SEZ is located at Sachin, on the outskirts of Surat, 
approximately 250 kilometers from the Mumbai Port. Surat 
happens to be the most developing city in the politically 
stable Gujarat state that offers the best infrastructure 
facility and conducive government for industrial growth.

The unit stands on a plot measuring 5,000 sq. meters. The 
main factory structure has a pillar-less Kirby structure of 
32 feet height, so as to accommodate large Web Presses. 
The unit comprises of 2 RCC Factory Buildings of Ground + 
2 floors to house the DTP, Pre-press, CTP, Sheet-fed Offset, 
Binding & Finishing lines.

The unit has strategic storage and loading/unloading 
bays with 3 gates that offer unhindered movement to 
trailer-trucks that carry 40’ Containers. The unit has heavy 
duty Hydraulic Cargo Lifts and special purpose vehicles to 
handle large rolls of paper.

The unit will have a dedicated High Tension Power Line 
(1200 + KVA) that offers uninterrupted power supply with 
generator-power back-ups for critical lines.

The unit has a fully furnished Guest House and modern 
Cafeteria for guests  and employees. It is connected 
to the Repro Unit at  Mahape and Corporate Office at  
Prabhadevi, Mumbai through dedicated lines that 
offer high bandwidth internet telephony, data and file  
transfer, as much as to transfer print-ready files between 
units.

A dedicated Video Surveillance and Electronic Access 
Control System monitors the unit 24/7 so as to offer 
complete security to clients’ intellectual property that 
matches international standards.

This unit would supply 80 million to 100 million books to 
the Educational & Children’s Book markets in USA, Europe, 
UK and Africa. This is having the most efficient complement 
of machines for Book Manufacturing for addressing 
practically all sizes of Educational Books ranging from 8.5” 
X 11” to 6” X 9”. It has fully automated finishing lines for UV 
and thermal laminations.
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The pre-press is anchored by advanced Mac / PC Systems, 
Image-setters and a fully integrated CTP that is connected 
and paired with the Unit at Mahape. This will also have an 
extension of the Print Specific ERP system, EFI – Hagen OA 
that is already operational in our Mahape Unit.

Above all, the unit is run by hand-picked professionals 
from print and allied industries and trained to excel in 
the Repro accented management style that has delighted 
many large publishing houses globally.

ESOPS

The Company has granted Stock Options to the employees 
under the “Repro India Ltd – Employee Stock Option 
Scheme, 2006” (“Repro ESOS 2006”). The particulars 
required to be disclosed pursuant to Clause 12 of SEBI 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, are set out in the 
Annexure to this Report.

None of the management employees have received 
options exceeding 5% of the value of the options issued 
for the year ending March 31, 2009.

Likewise, no employee has been issued share options, 
during the year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued 
capital of the Company at the time of grant.

In view of the fall in the market price of the stock during 
last few months, the employee stock options have been 
rendered unattractive. Hence, it is proposed to authorize 
the Board of Directors/Compensation Committee to 
reset the exercise price of the options pursuant to the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Promoter Group Companies

Pursuant to intimation from the Promoters, the names 
of Promoters and the Promoter Group comprising the 
“group” as defined in the Monopolies and Restrictive Trade 
Practices Act, 1969, have been disclosed in the Annual 
Report of the Company, for the purpose of Regulation 
3(1)(e) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 1997.

Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors propose to transfer a sum of Rs. 165 lacs, 
being 10% of the profits of the year under review, to 
the general reserves of the Company pursuant to The 
Companies (Transfer of Profits to Reserves) Rules, 1975.

Dividend

Your Directors recommend declaration of dividend of  
Rs. 2.5 per Equity share of Rs. 10/- each for the year ended 
on March 31, 2009.

Dematerialization of Shares

The Company has continued its tie up with National 
Securities Depository Limited  (NSDL) & Central Depository 
Services of India Limited (CDSL) for dematerialization of 
the shares of the Company. Accordingly, the shares of the 
Company are available for dematerialization and can be 
traded in demat form.

Auditors’ Report

The Notes to Account referred to by the Auditors in their 
report are self-explanatory and do not require any further 
clarification.

Auditors

The Auditors M/s. S. R. Batliboi and Company,  Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai, retire at the conclusion of the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, and, being  
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Directors

Mr. Sanjay Asher and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve, Directors of 
the Company, retire by rotation and being eligible, offer 
themselves for reappointment.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 18, 
2009 have appointed Mr. Pramod Khera as an 
Additional Director and as an Executive Director 
for a period of five years from May 18, 2009 subject 
to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. With the induction of  
Mr. Pramod Khera, as an Executive Director with effect 
from May 18, 2009, the number of Independent Directors 

Directors’ Report (Contd.)
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on the Board of Directors is less than the required 
percentage of 50%. The Composition of the Board of 
Directors will be structured in compliance with the 
requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement in the 
prescribed period of time.

Personnel

In terms of the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Particulars of 
Employees) Rules, 1975, names and other particulars of 
the employees are required to be set out in the annexure 
to this report. However, as per the provisions of Section 
219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Report and 
Annual Accounts of the Company sent to the shareholders 
do not contain the said Annexure. Any shareholder 
desirous of obtaining a copy of the said annexure may 
write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office 
of the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of Energy:

As required under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies 
Act, 1956, (including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with 
Rule 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the 
Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, your Company 
is not covered by the Schedule of Industries which are 
required to furnish the information in Form ‘A’. However, 
your Company has continued to lay a special emphasis in 
creating awareness on conservation of energy.

Technology Absorption:

The Company does not have any technical collaboration 
arrangements. The Company has always used the latest 
technology available in the industry. Accordingly, the 
Company has procured the latest equipment and its 
personnel are trained from time to time, on the use, 
operation and maintenance of such highly sophisticated 
equipment.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The foreign exchange earnings of the Company during 
the year were Rs. 13,976 lacs while the outgoings were  

Directors’ Report (Contd.)

Rs. 6,273 lacs (including value of materials imported).

Report on Corporate Governance

A separate report on Corporate Governance as stipulated 
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock 
Exchanges forms part of the Annual Report along with 
the Certificate from Mr. Dinesh Kumar Deora, Practising 
Company Secretary confirming compliance of conditions 
of Corporate Governance.

The Declaration by the Managing Director regarding 
compliance by board members and senior management 
personnel with the code of conduct also forms a part of 
the Annual Report.

Employee Welfare Schemes

Gratuity Liability of the Company in all cases has been 
discharged promptly through LIC of India. The Company 
has continued its tie up with LIC for the Employees Group 
Superannuation Scheme.

Human Resources activities:

HR initiatives have been implemented with an objective 
to provide comprehensive training, ensure continuous 
improvement, boost motivation and empower our 
Human Capital. Various workshops, seminars, etc. have 
been conducted to motivate the employees and bring in 
the best talent in the organization who will strive to take 
your Company to greater heights.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, 
the Directors confirm that:

a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed 
and no material departures have been made from 
the same;

b)	 The Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit of the Company for that period;
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c)	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

d)	 The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on 
a going concern basis.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on 
the operations of the Company is provided in a separate 
section and forms a part of this Report.
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Disclosure pursuant to the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme 
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999

Sr. No. Particulars Repro ESOS 2006
a Options granted 5,00,000
b The pricing formula The exercise price for granting of Options is to be the “Market 

Price” within the meaning of ESOP Guidelines issued by SEBI 
which is the latest available closing price, prior to the date 
when options are granted by the Compensation Committee, 
on that Stock Exchange where there is highest trading volume 
on the said date. Accordingly, the Company issued 5,00,000 
Stock options at a price of Rs. 98 per option, being the closing 
price of the equity shares of Repro India Limited on May 14, 
2007 (latest available closing price) at NSE with a trading 
quantity volume of 9952 shares (as against Rs. 99 with a trading 
quantity volume of 5196 shares at BSE ).

c Options vested (as on March 31, 2009) 1,50,000
d Options exercised (as at March 31, 2009) Nil
e The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise 

of option (as on March 31, 2009)
1,50,000

f Options lapsed (as at March 31, 2009) Nil 
g Variation of terms of options Nil
h Money realised by exercise of options Nil
i Total number of options in force (as at March 31, 2009) 5,00,000/- 
j Employee wise details of options granted to :

i)	 Senior managerial personnel Baijendra Gujarathi	 25,000
Balkrishna Patil	 25,000
Dinesh Sureka	 25,000
Nimisha Dalal	 25,000
Rajan Nadpurohit	 25,000
Shekhar Bangera	 25,000
Shirish Joshi 	 25,000
Sunil Unni	 25,000

ii)	 any other employee who receives a grant in any one 
year of option amounting to 5% or more of option 
granted during that year;

Nil

iii)	 Identified employees who were granted option 
during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the 
issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of the Company at the time of grant

Nil

k Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to issue of 
shares on exercise of option calculated in accordance with 
Accounting Standard (AS) 20 ‘Earnings per Share’

Rs. 15.05

l i)	 Method of calculation of employee  
compensation cost

The Company has calculated the employee compensation cost 
using the intrinsic value method of accounting to account for 
Options issued under the Repro ESOS 2006.
The compensation cost as per the intrinsic value method for 
the year 2009 is Nil

ii) 	 Difference between the employee compensation 
cost so computed at (i) above and the employee 
compensation cost that shall have been recognized 
if it had used the fair value of the Options

Fair value as per the Black-Scholes valuation model is  
Rs. 47.31 which is less than the exercise price and hence there 
is no employee compensation cost had the Company used the 
fair value of the options.

iii) 	 The impact of this difference on profits and on EPS of 
the Company

NA

m Weighted average exercise price and  
Weighted average  fair value

Rs. 98
Rs. 47.31

n Fair value of Options based on Black-Scholes methodology Rs. 47.31
Assumptions
Risk free rate 8.00%
Expected life of options 30% after one year

30% after two years
40% after three years

Expected Volatility 57%
Expected Dividends 1.59%
Closing market price of share on date of option grant Rs. 98

Annexure to the Directors’ Report
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Persons constituting Group coming within the definition of the ’group’ as defined in the Monopolies and 
Restrictive Trade Practice Act, 1969, include the following:

M/s Reproductions Private Limited formerly known as M/s Repro Holding..................Promoter

M/s Superior Prints Private Limited formerly known as M/s Repro Finance .................Promoter

Mr. Sanjeev Inderjit Vohra.................................................................................................................Promoter

Mr. Vinod Inderjit Vohra.....................................................................................................................Promoter

Mr. Mukesh Rajnikant Dhruve.........................................................................................................Promoter

Mr. Rajeev Inderjit Vohra ..................................................................................................................Promoter

Master Abhinav Vohra .......................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Miss Natasha Vohra ............................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Miss Trisha Vohra .................................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Miss Sonam Vohra ...............................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Miss Tanya Vohra .................................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Master Kunal Vohra ............................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Mr. Inderjit Vohra .................................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Sanjeev Vohra-HUF .............................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Master Rahul Vohra ............................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Mrs. Deepa Vohra ................................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Mrs. Renu Vohra ...................................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Mrs. Avinash Vohra .............................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Mrs. Renu Sachdev ..............................................................................................................................Promoter Group

Mrs. Shruti Dhruve...............................................................................................................................Promoter Group
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Board’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance
The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is driven by the desire towards attainment of the highest levels 
of transparency, accountability and equity, in all facets of its operations, and in all its interactions with its stakeholders, 
including shareholders, employees, the government, lenders and the society. The Company believes that all its  
operations and actions must serve the underlying goals of enhancing overall enterprise value and retain shareholders 
trust, over a sustained period of time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors provide strategic direction and thrust to the operations of the Company. The Board has an 
Executive Chairman and ten other Directors. These ten directors comprise of one Managing Director, three Whole Time 
Directors, one Non Executive, Non Independent Director and five Non Executive, Independent Directors. As on March 31, 
2009 the Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company was as per the requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement with 50% of Board of Directors comprising of Independent Directors. With the induction of Mr. Pramod 
Khera, as an Executive Director with effect from May 18, 2009, the number of Independent Directors on the Board of 
Directors is less than the required percentage of 50%. The Composition of the Board of Directors will be structured in 
compliance with the requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement in the precribed period of time.

The composition of the Board of Directors, the attendance of each Director at Board Meetings and the last Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) and also the number of other Board of Directors or Board Committees on which he is Member/
Chairman, are as under:

Name of the Director Designation Nature of 
Directorship

Attendance 
Particulars

No. of other Directorships and Committee 
Members/Chairmanships

Board 
Meeting

AGM Directorships Committee 
Memberships

Chairmanships

Mr. Vinod Vohra Chairman Executive & 
Promoter

3 Present Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Sanjeev Vohra Managing 
Director

Executive & 
Promoter

4 Present 2 Nil Nil

Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Whole Time 
Director

Executive & 
Promoter

4 Present Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Rajeev Vohra Whole Time 
Director

Executive & 
Promoter

4 Present 2 Nil Nil

Mr. Sanjay Asher Director Non Executive 
Independent

4 Present 32* 8 3

Mr. Ullal R. Bhat Director Non Executive 
Independent

4 Present 4 Nil Nil

Dr. Jamshed J. Irani Director Non Executive 
Independent

4 Present 10 6 1

Mr. P. Krishnamurthy Director Non Executive 
Independent

4 Present 7 Nil Nil

Mr. Dushyant Mehta Director Non Executive 4 Present 1 Nil Nil
Mr. Alyque Padamsee Director Non Executive 

Independent
3 Present 1 Nil Nil

Mr. Pramod Khera Whole Time
Director

Executive Appointed as 
Executive Director 

with effect from 
May 18, 2009

1 Nil Nil

*	O ut of the 32 companies in which he is a Director, 18 of them are Private Limited Companies and in one of the 
companies he is an Alternate Director.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2009, four Board Meetings were held as per Statutory requirements on May 
23, 2008, July 18, 2008, October 13, 2008 and January 21, 2009. The Company has held at least one Board Meeting in 
every quarter and the maximum time gap between any two meetings was not more than four months.

The Code of Conduct applicable to the Board of Directors and the Senior Managerial Personnel has been posted on the 
Company’s website. Further all Board Members and the Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company have affirmed 
their adherence to the code. The Company’s Managing Director’s declaration to this effect forms a part of this report.

Report on Corporate Governance
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors have re-constituted the Audit Committee on January 1, 2009. Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors consists of following directors as specified below:

1.   Mr. Sanjay Asher : Chairman (Independent Non Executive Director)

2.   Mr. P. Krishnamurthy : Member (Independent Non Executive Director)

3.   Mr. Alyque Padamsee : Member (Independent Non Executive Director)

3.   Mr. Mukesh Dhruve : Member (Executive Whole Time Director)

The constitution, composition and terms of reference to the Audit Committee covers the matters specified under Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement (revised till date) and Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.

All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and Mr. Sanjay Asher is a Fellow Member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and possesses wide and varied accounting or related financial management expertise.

Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni, Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The main function of the Audit 
Committee is to provide the Board of Directors of the Company with additional assurance as to reliability of financial 
information and statutory financial statements and as to the adequacy of internal accounting and control systems. It 
acts as a link between the management, statutory auditors and the Board of Directors.

During the year the Audit Committee met four times on May 23, 2008, July 18, 2008, October 13, 2008 and January 21, 
2009. Necessary quorum was present at all these meetings.
Name No. of Meetings

Held Attended
Mr. Sanjay Asher 4 4
Mr. P. Krishnamurthy 4 1*
Mr. Alyque Padamsee 4 3
Mr. Mukesh Dhruve 4 4

* H e became a member of the audit committee only on January 1, 2009

INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCES and INTERACTION COMMITTEE

The Investors’ Grievances & Interaction Committee constituted by the Board comprises of Mr. Alyque Padamsee, a Non 
Executive Director as Chairman and Mr. Vinod Vohra and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Executive Directors as its members. The 
Board has designated Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company as the Secretary 
of the Committee.

The Committee acts in accordance with the terms of reference specified by the Board from time to time which, inter 
alia, include overseeing and reviewing all matters connected with investor’s complaints and redressal mechanism 
besides approval or authorizations for issue of duplicate share certificate, share transfer/transmission/refusal of transfer/
consolidation/sub-division/dematerialisation or rematerialisation, etc., as per applicable statutory and regulatory 
provisions.

During the period from April 1, 2008 till March 31, 2009, 24 investor complaints were received, all 24 were resolved and 
Nil were pending. Futher no investor complaints remained unattended/pending for more than 30 days.

Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer nominated for this purpose under Clause 47(a) 
of the Listing Agreement. She looks into the investor grievances and co-ordinates with the Registrar and Shares 
Transfer Agents, M/s Link Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as Intime Spectrum Registry Limited) for 
redressal of grievances. The Company as per the amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, has created an email id  
investor@reproindialtd.com dedicated for the investor related queries and the same has been posted on the website of 
the Company as well.

The Committee held four meetings during the year on May 23, 2008, July 18, 2008, October 13, 2008 and January 20, 
2009. All the members of the Committee attended the aforesaid meetings.
The Committee has appointed a Sub-Committee consisting of Mr. Vinod Vohra, Chairman and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve, 
Director with Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni acting as the Secretary to the sub-committee to look after approval or authorizations 

Report on Corporate Governance (Contd.)



43Annual Report

for issue of duplicate share certificate, share transfer/transmission/refusal of transfer/consolidation/sub-division/ 
dematerialisation or rematerialisation, etc., as per applicable statutory and regulatory provisions which Committee shall 
meet as and when required to complete the requests of the shareholders within one month of receipt of any such 
request as required under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement.
The Sub-Committee of the Investors’ Grievances and Interaction Committee met 11 times during the year. Both the 
members of the Sub-Committee attended the aforesaid meeting. The Minutes of the Sub-Committee are placed before 
the following Investors’ Grievances and Interaction Committee Meeting.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Board of Directors have constituted the Remuneration Committee on February 15, 2009. Remuneration Committee 
of the Board of Directors consists of following directors as specified below:

1.	 Mr. Sanjay Asher : Chairman (Independent Non Executive Director)

2.	 Mr. P. Krishnamurthy : Member (Independent Non Executive Director)

3.	 Mr. Alyque Padamsee : Member (Independent Non Executive Director)

4.	 Mr. Mukesh Dhruve : Member (Executive Director)
The Remuneration Committee has approved and recommended the remuneration of the Executive Directors as 
mentioned in the Notice to the AGM dated May 18, 2009.
CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION
In accordance with Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreement, the CEO and CFO Certificate signed by Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, 
Managing Director and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve, the Whole Time Director in charge of Finance was placed before the Board 
of Directors at their meeting held on May 18, 2009.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Location, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding 3 years are as follows:

Year Date Time Location

2007-08 July 18, 2008 11.30 a.m. The Club – Colonial Hall, 197, D.N. Nagar Road, Near D.N. Nagar 
Police Station, Andheri (W), Mumbai-400053

2006-07 July 31, 2007 4.00 p.m. The Club – Mahogany Hall, 197, D.N. Nagar Road, Near D.N. Nagar 
Police Station, Andheri (W), Mumbai-400053

2005-06 September 12, 2006 11.00 a.m. The Club – Colonial Hall, 197, D.N. Nagar Road, Near D.N. Nagar 
Police Station, Andheri (W), Mumbai-400053

The following Special Resolutions were passed by the Company at the last 3 Annual General Meetings.
Annual General Meeting held on September 12, 2006:
i)	 Amendment in the Articles of Association of the Company by insertion of Article 36 regarding option or right to call 

of shares.
ii)	 Grant of 5,00,000 Options vide Repro ESOS 2006 to the employees of the Company, its subsidiary and holding 

Company, if any.
Annual General Meeting held on July 18, 2008:
i)	 Reappointment of Mr. Alyque Padamsee as an Image Building and Business Development Consultant of the 

Company.
ii)	 Payment of Commission to the Non Executive Directors.
iii)	T he approval for keeping the Registers and Returns at the office of the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.
iv)	 Appointment of Ms. Sonam Vohra – a relative of Director to hold an office or place of profit as Business Manager.
v)	 Appointment of Ms. Renu Sachdev – a relative of Director to hold an office or place of profit as Senior Manager.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, no resolution has been passed by the Company’s members through postal 
ballot. Approval of shareholders by postal ballot for enhancement in the borrowing powers of the board of directors 
and the limits for hypothecation of the assets of the Company u/s 293(1)(d) and 293(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956, 
are being sought vide Notice of Postal Ballot dated May 18, 2009.
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DISCLOSURES ON MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS THAT IS TRANSACTIONS OF THE COMPANY 
OF MATERIAL NATURE, WITH ITS PROMOTERS, THE DIRECTORS OR THE MANAGEMENT, THEIR RELATIVES, OR SUBSIDIARIES, 
ETC. THAT MAY HAVE POTENTIAL CONFLICT WITH THE INTEREST OF THE COMPANY AT LARGE.

1)	 Materially significant Related Party transactions

	T he transaction between the Company and the Management, Directors or their relatives are disclosed in the 
Paragraph No. 7 of the Notes to the Annual Accounts in compliance with the Accounting Standard relating to 
“Related Party Disclosures”. There is no materially significant related party transaction that may have potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

2)	T here were no cases of non-compliance with Stock Exchange (except the one related to the Composition of Board 
of Directors as mentioned in paragraph related to the Board of Directors) or SEBI regulations, nor any cases of 
penalties or strictures imposed by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority for any violation 
related to the capital market during the last three years.

3)	T he Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board members and the Senior Managerial Personnel of 
the Company and the same has been posted on the website of the Company. All the Board members and senior 
managerial personnel have affirmed compliance with the code as on March 31, 2009. A certification to this effect as 
required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement by the Managing Director is forming part of this Annual Report.

4)	 All the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 are complied with and the Company has presently not adopted any 
of the non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

5)	 Remuneration to Non Executive Directors of the Company

	T he Non Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs. 15,000/- per meeting for attending each meeting of the 
Board of Directors and Committees thereof. The Non Executive Directors do not draw any other remuneration 
from the Company except Mr. Alyque Padamsee, one of our Non Executive Directors, received fees of Rs. 3,35,802 
towards professional services being rendered by him as Image Building and Business Development Consultant in 
addition to his sitting fees for attending Board and Committee meetings.

	T he aggregate value of salary and perquisites paid for the year ended March 31, 2009, to the Managing Director and 
Whole Time Directors is as follows:

(Amount in Rupees)

Name of the Director Designation Salary Perquisites Commission Total 
Mr. Vinod Vohra Chairman 17,01,000 10,000 – 17,11,000
Mr. Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director 16,77,000 1,84,300 50,00,000 68,61,300
Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Whole Time Director 17,43,000 10,000 – 17,53,000
Mr. Rajeev Vohra Whole Time Director 16,41,000 10,000 – 16,51,000

The aggregate value of sitting fees paid to the Non Executive Directors for the year ended March 31, 2009 is as 
follows:

Name of the Director Sitting fees paid (Rs.)
Mr. Sanjay Asher 1,35,000
Mr. Ullal R. Bhat 60,000
Dr. Jamshed J. Irani 60,000
Mr. P. Krishnamurthy 75,000
Mr. Dushyant Mehta 60,000
Mr. Alyque Padamsee 1,35,000

The Chairman, Managing Director and the Whole Time Directors are appointed for a term of five years from March 
1, 2005 to February 28, 2010,  subject to the reappointment of Whole Time Director viz. Mr. Mukesh Dhruve who is 
liable to retire by rotation. The resolutions for reappointment of the Executive Directors namely Mr. Vinod Vohra,   
Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, Mr. Rajeev Vohra, Mr. Mukesh Dhruve and the appointment of new Executive Director,  
Mr. Pramod Khera, are placed before the shareholders for approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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6)	S hareholding of Non Executive Directors

Director No. of Shares Percentage

Mr. Sanjay Asher 2,000 0.02

Mr. Alyque Padamsee 10,000 0.1

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly results and annual results are normally published in ‘Free Press Journal’ and ‘Navshakti’. These results are 
simultaneously posted on the Company’s website: www.reproindialtd.com.
SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
1.	 Annual General Meeting
	T he Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on July 18, 2009, at ‘The Club’ , Colonial Hall,  

at 197, D. N. Nagar Road, Near D. N. Nagar Police Station, Andheri (W), Mumbai-400053.
2.	 Book Closure Dates: July 11, 2009 to July 18, 2009
	D ividend Payment date : On or after July 18, 2009.
3.	 Financial Calendar (tentative)
	 Annual General Meeting : Last week of September, 2010
	 Quarterly Results:
	 First Quarter ending on June 30, 2009 – Last week of July, 2009
	S econd Quarter ending on September 30, 2009 – Last week of October, 2009
	T hird Quarter ending on December 31, 2009 – Last week of January, 2010
	Y ear ending on March 31, 2010 – Last week of June, 2010
4.	 Listing of Shares on Stock Exchanges
	T he shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited.
	 Annual Listing fees as prescribed for the year 2009-10 have been paid to the Stock Exchanges.
5.	 Stock Code
	S crip Code on BSE is 532687
	T rading Symbol on NSE is “REPRO”
	D emat ISIN no : INE461B01014
6.	 Market Price Data 
	 High, Low during each month in last financial year and Share price performance in comparison to broad-based 

indices-BSE Sensex & NIFTY

Month BSE Share Price SENSEX NSE Share Price NIFTY
High Low High Low High Low High Low

April 2008 107.50 83.05 17,480.74 15,297.96 109.95 74.25 5,230.75 4,628.75
May 2008 150.75 101.10 17,735.70 16,196.02 151.90 102.75 5,298.85 4,801.90
June 2008 133.00 95.00 16,632.72 13,405.54 131.85 95.50 4,908.80 4,021.70
July 2008 135.90 87.10 15,130.09 12,514.02 135.20 88.15 4,539.45 3,790.12
August 2008 138.90 126.60 15,579.78 14,002.43 139.70 124.15 4,649.65 4,201.85
September 2008 148.35 106.00 15,107.01 12,153.55 148.50 104.35 4,558.00 3,715.05
October 2008 126.80 73.00 13,203.86 7,697.39 126.00 74.00 4,000.50 2,252.75
November 2008 84.90 71.25 10,945.41 8,316.39 84.35 69.20 3,240.55 2,502.90
December 2008 92.00 69.00 10,188.54 8,467.43 92.60 66.00 3,110.45 2,570.70
January 2009 83.75 55.00 10,469.72 8,631.60 83.60 59.00 3,147.20 2,661.65
February 2009 77.75 54.00 9,724.87 8,619.22 79.50 54.00 2,969.75 2,677.55
March 2009 60.90 42.30 10,127.09 8,047.17 57.50 43.00 3,123.35 2,539.45
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7. 	 Registrar and Share Transfer Agent	
	 M/s Link Intime India Private Limited (Formerly known as M/s Intime Spectrum Registry Limited)
	 C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
	L BS Marg, Bhandup (W),
	 Mumbai 400 078
	 Phone: +91-022-25963838
	 Fax : +91-022-25946969
	 repro@linkintime.co.in

8. 	 Share Transfer System

	T he Board has delegated the authority for approving share transfer, transmission, etc. of the Company’s securities 
to the Investors’ Grievances and Interaction Committee. A summary of transfer/transmission of securities of the 
Company so approved by the Investors’ Grievances and Interaction Committee, is placed before at every Board 
Meeting.

	T he Company also obtains from a Company Secretary in practice, half yearly certificate of compliance with the 
share transfer formalities as required under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges and files a 
copy of the certificate with the Stock Exchanges.

9.	 Distribution Schedule as on March 31, 2009

No. of equity shares held No. of 
shareholders

% to total 
holders

No. of shares % to total shares

1-500 6,833 93.30 696,319 6.65
501-1,000 231 3.15 189,783 1.81
1,001-2,000 98 1.34 154,067 1.47
2,001-3,000 54 0.73 139,881 1.34
3,001-4,000 13 0.18 44,452 0.42
4,001-5,000 17 0.23 79,408 0.76
5,001-10,000 34 0.46 258,767 2.47
10,001 & above 42 0.60 8,916,472 85.09
TOTAL 7,322 100.00 10,479,149 100.00

10.	 Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2009

Category No. of holders No. of shares % of holding
Promoters 23 7,207,961 68.78
Mutual Funds/UTI 1 578,341 5.52
FIIs 1 5,039 0.05
Trusts 2 1,350 0.01
Bodies Corporate 232 611,738 5.84
Individuals 6,911 1,544,899 14.74
Clearing Member 45 30,507 0.29
NRI 98 39,714 0.38
Directors & Relatives 9 459,600 4.39
TOTAL 7,322 10,479,149 100.00

11.	 Dematerialization of shares & liquidity

	 As on March 31, 2009, 7,019,234 of the total equity capital is held in the demat form with NSDL and CDSL. Around 
66.98% of the shares of the Company are in dematerialized form. Shares of the Company can be traded only in demat 
form on Stock Exchanges. Shares of the Company are traded on BSE and NSE and hence ensure good liquidity for 
the investors.
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80 equity shares of the Company are in the Escrow Account of Link Intime India Private Limited (former name 
Intime Spectrum Registry Limited). The Company is taking steps to transfer these shares and the related benefits 
to a suspense account of Repro India Limited pursuant to the latest amendment in the Clause 5A of the Listing 
Agreement.

12.	 GDRs/ADRs issued by the Company

	T here are no ADRs/GDRs/warrants or any convertible instruments issued by the Company.

13.	 Plant Locations

	 Facility at Navi Mumbai: 50/2, TTC, MIDC Industrial Area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai 400 710.

	SE Z facility at Surat: Plot No. 90 to 93 & 165, Surat Special Economic Zone, Sachin, Surat 394 230.

14.	 Address for Correspondence
	 For all matters relating to shares, Annual Reports, contact:
	 Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni,

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer,
Marathe Udyog Bhavan, 2nd Floor,
Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi,
Mumbai 400 025
Tel : +91-022-24313526; Fax : +91-022-24374531
Email id exclusively for investor related queries : investor@reproindialtd.com
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15. 	 Details of the Directors seeking appointment/reappointment at the forthcoming AGM

Name of the Director Mr. Sanjay Asher
Date of Birth November 26, 1964
Date of Appointment May 2, 2000
Areas of Experience Mr. Sanjay Asher joined our Board as an Independent Director. 

He is a Bachelor in Commerce and a Bachelor of Law from the 
Mumbai University. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant. He 
has been a practicing advocate since 1989 with M/s Crawford 
Bayley & Co. He was admitted as a Solicitor in the year 1993 and is 
a partner of M/s Crawford Bayley & Co. since 2000.

Educational Qualifications B.Com, FCA, LLB & Solicitor
Companies in which he holds directorship A.L. Movers Private Limited; A.L. Records Management Private 

Limited; Allied Pickfords India Private Limited; Bajaj Allianz Life 
Insurance Company Limited; Bajaj Allianz General Insurance 
Company Limited; Dewas Soya Limited; Diamant Boart Marketing 
Private Limited; Divinet Access Technologies Limited; Finolib 
Chemicals Private Limited; Finolex Cables Limited; Finolex Plasson 
Industries Limited; Huntleigh Healthcare India Private Limited; 
I2IT Private Limited; Kryfs Power Components Limited; Mandhana 
Industries Limited; Majesty Investments Private Limited; Morgan 
Stanley Investment Management Private Limited; Mepha Marpha 
India Private Limited; NV Advisory Services Private Limited; Orbit 
Electricals Private Limited; Oerlikon Textile Components India 
Private Limited; Paess Industrial Engineers Limited; Ratiopharm 
India Private Limited;Saurer Precicomp India Private Limited; 
Schlaforst Engineering (India) Limited; Sharp India Limited; 
Sparsh BPO Services Limited; Shree Renuka Sugars Limited; 
Siporex India Private Limited; Sudarshan Chemicals Industries 
Limited; ValueQb Consulting Private Limited; Zinser Textile 
Systems Private Limited

Membership/Chairmanship of Board Committees Member of Audit Committee and Share Transfer and Investor 
Grievance Committee of Finolex Cables Limited
Member of Audit Committee Schlafhorst Engineering India 
Limited
Chairman of Audit Committee Sparsh BPO Services Limited
Chairman of Audit Committee and Share Transfer and Investor 
Grievance Committee of Shree Renuka Sugars Limited
Member of Audit Committee and Share Transfer and Investor 
Grievance Committee of Sharp India Limited

Shareholding 2,000 shares

Name of the Director Mr. Mukesh Dhruve
Date of Birth April 28, 1960
Date of Appointment December 28, 1993
Areas of Experience Mr. Mukesh Rajnikant Dhruve is a Fellow Member of the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India. As a part of our Company 
since its inception, he played a critical role in its expansion into 
new business areas. He leads the businesses with the countries 
in the African Continent. He has been responsible for building 
relationships with financial institutions. He also directs the legal 
and statutory operations of our Company.

Educational Qualifications B.Com, FCA
Companies in which he holds directorship NIL
Membership/Chairmanship of Board Committees NIL

Shareholding 166,000 shares
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Name of the Director Mr. Pramod Khera

Date of Birth February 22, 1960
Date of Appointment May 18, 2009
Areas of Experience Mr. Pramod Khera has joined the Board of Directors of Repro India 

Limited as an Executive Director for setting up the Digital Print 
business venture. Prior to that, he was heading Aptech Limited, 
as its CEO and Managing Director since 2001. He was responsible 
for the global operations of the company, which included 
the education brands of Aptech Computer Education, Arena 
Animation, Avalon Academy and N-Power. His responsibilities 
also included overseeing the China JV, On-line Learning, On-line 
Testing and Corporate Training businesses of Aptech.
With over 20 years in Aptech, he has been a part of the growth of 
the company since inception and has contributed significantly in 
building Aptech into a Global Learning Organisation.
He has authored a book titled, “Franchising - The Route Map to 
Rapid Business Excellence”, published by Tata McGraw Hill. He is 
also the National Vice-President of The Franchising Association 
of India. He has participated in various forums on IT, Education, 
Franchising and Strategy in India and abroad.
He was also instrumental in pioneering Tele-shopping in India 
when he set up Tele-Shopping Network (a UTV venture) as its CEO 
during 1994-96. With a total work experience of over 25 years, he 
has also worked with NIIT and Calico Mills. He continues to be on 
the board of Aptech as a non-executive Director. He is also the 
Managing Trustee of AICAR (Asian Institute of Communication 
and Research), an AICTE approved management institute at 
Neral, Maharashtra.

Educational Qualifications B.Tech from IIT Delhi; PGDIM from IIM Bangalore and Ph.D. in 
“Knowledge Management” from Pune University

Companies in which he holds directorship Aptech Limited
Membership/Chairmanship of Board Committees NIL

Shareholding 4,300

Name of the Director Mr. Vinod Vohra

Date of Birth February 15, 1952
Date of Appointment April 1, 1993
Areas of Experience Mr. Vinod Vohra, is a Science Graduate. Having begun his career 

in marketing, his interests led him to setting up technology 
led projects. Being keenly interested in technology, he was 
among the few people to recognise the potential of the Apple 
Macintosh computer and use it for Graphic Desktop Publishing 
and Multimedia applications. His vision was instrumental in our 
Company’s transition to the area of Fulfilment services. He was 
responsible for the planning and setting up our Company’s 
Print and Fulfilment facility, and currently keeps in tune with the 
technology required to enhance the business infrastructure as 
well as to plan the infrastructure for our Company’s foray into 
newer business lines.

Educational Qualifications Science Graduate

Companies in which he holds directorship NIL
Membership/Chairmanship of Board Committees NIL
Shareholding 187,700
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Name of the Director Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
Date of Birth February 25, 1957
Date of Appointment April 1, 1993
Areas of Experience Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, having graduated in Economics and Finance, 

his is the main financial mind behind our Company and he has 
been significantly responsible for the investment strategy of our 
Company that has driven our Company into the field of value 
added print solutions. Through his direction, guidance and 
efficient resource management, he has taken our Company into 
high growth business areas, which have resulted in niche and 
specialized segments of growth.

Educational Qualifications Graduated in Economics and Finance
Companies in which he holds directorship Reproductions Private Limited and Superior Prints Private 

Limited.
Membership/Chairmanship of Board Committees NIL
Shareholding 204,250

Name of the Director Mr. Rajeev Vohra
Date of Birth October 8, 1960
Date of Appointment April 1, 1993
Areas of Experience Mr. Rajeev Vohra, is a commerce graduate. He has over the past 

years, acquired considerable experience in manufacturing, both 
on the technical and management front. Based on this experience 
he has introduced efficient technology processes to our Company. 
His skills were acknowledged when he was nominated for the  
India Young Business Achiever Award instituted by Sistas 
Worldcom Inc and the Indian Express Group in 1997. He currently 
directs our Company’s Print and Fulfilment facility in Navi 
Mumbai.

Educational Qualifications Commerce Graduate
Companies in which he holds directorship Reproductions Private Limited and Superior Prints Private 

Limited.
Membership/Chairmanship of Board Committees NIL
Shareholding 172,314

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

	

Sanjeev Vohra
Managing Director

Mumbai, Dated: May 18, 2009
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT  
PERSONNEL WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Managerial 
Personnel of the Company. This Code has been posted on the website of the Company.

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year March 31, 2009, received from the senior managerial 
personnel of the Company and the Members of the Board a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as 
applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Managerial Personnel means the employees in the cadre of  
Sr. Vice President, Vice President, Associate Vice President and Company Secretary as on March 31, 2009.

	 For REPRO INDIA LIMITED

	 SANJEEV VOHRA
Managing Director

Mumbai, Dated: May 18, 2009

Certificate of Compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements  
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

To,
The Members,
Repro India Limited,

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Repro India Limited (the Company) 
for the year ended March 31, 2009, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with Bombay 
Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our  
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Clause. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the 
representation made by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement except the non complaince of Clause 49(I)(A)(ii) 
with effect from August 7, 2007 till May 22, 2008, in respect of failure on part of Company to have minimum 5 (Five) 
Independent Directors, whereas the Company had only 4 (Four) Independent Directors.

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended March 31, 2009, no investor  
grievance is pending/unattended for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained 
by the Investors’ Grievances and Interaction Committee and as intimated by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of 
the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

DINESH KUMAR DEORA
Practising Company Secretary

Membership No. 5683
CP No. 4119

Mumbai, Dated: May 18, 2009 
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Management Discussion & Analysis Report

Your Directors are pleased to present the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report for the year ended March 
31, 2009

1.	 Developments during this year 

	 This has been an interesting year for Repro India 
Limited and the overall impact of the global recession 
has not been felt so badly by your Company since 
your Company is mainly into Education books printing 
and education is fairly recession free. The highlights 
of the year are: In the year 2008-09 there has been 
a 58% growth in the sales from Rs. 151 crores to  
Rs. 238 crores; 108% growth in export, which has 
been the key focus of the Company. Exports have 
grown from Rs. 70 crores to Rs. 147 crores. Exports 
to Domestic ratio, has improved to 64:36. There has 
been a 22% growth in the operating margins from  
Rs. 29.12 crores to Rs. 35.60 crores, 6% growth in profit 
after tax, Rs. 15.55 crores has become Rs. 16.52 crores. 
This is however subject to the foreign exchange  
fluctuation loss. Not considering the foreign exchange 
fluctuation loss of Rs. 15.35 crores, there would 
have been a growth of 127% and profit after  
tax from Rs. 13.99 crores in 2008 would have been  
Rs. 31.87 crores. EPS has grown from Rs. 15 per share  
to Rs. 16 per share and most importantly the Surat 
SEZ facility is fully operational now. This year, effective 
from April your Company is utilizing full capacity of 
Surat facility.

	 During this coming year, the focus is directed towards 
consolidating our presence in the Children’s Book 
Publishers and open up Educational Publishers across 
UK & EU and make entries in new geographies like 
Belgium, Germany and The Netherlands.

	 During this year, your Company has successfully rolled 
out its ERP implementation, an EFI Hagen OA initiative 
commenced in 2007. Now the various modules that 
interconnect all the core process of the print business 
are fully integrated. We have achieved the 3600 
intelligent end-to-end process integration. The two 
manufacturing locations as well as corporate office 
are now linked with a common information base for 
transactions as well as MIS. This will help Repro to 
scale up for growth as well configure more dynamic 
business & services offerings. Your Company will be 
better equipped for managing customer business 
needs in a totality perspective. 

	 2.	 Risks & Concern and Risk Mitigation

	 2.1	 Effect of recession and the Global economic 
slowdown on our business, Company 
Perspective:

		  Since your Company is predominantly into 
education business, the global economic 

slowdown has not directly impacted our business, 
although the impact has been felt in certain 
areas.

	 2.2	 Rise in Paper Cost:  

		  The performance of the Company is significantly 
dependent on the timely and adequate availability 
of paper at a competitive price and any adverse 
impact on its availability may adversely affect the 
business.

		  The Company has a diversified supply base in India 
and abroad to ensure uninterrupted supplies. 
However, any adverse factors including natural 
disasters, changes in legislation or any other 
events may adversely impact availability of paper 
and its price, which in turn may adversely affect 
the Company’s continuity of business, ability to 
meet client commitments and consequently its 
sales and profitability. 

		  Company’s Perspective: 

		  The Company has long term tie ups with paper 
mills such that the prices of paper are revised 
only at the end of every quarter and hence for 
every increase in paper cost, the Company has a 
time period of a quarter to revise the prices of its 
products to the Customer.

	 2.3 	Foreign Exchange Fluctuation:

		  The Company’s export revenues are largely 
denominated in foreign currency, predominantly 
in US$ whereas the large proportion of the costs 
are denominated in Indian Rupees (INR). This 
exposes the Company to profit/loss on currency 
fluctuations.

		  Company’s Perspective: 

		  To mitigate this risk the Company follows a 
proactive hedging policy for foreign currency 
exposure using non speculative foreign exchange 
forward contracts. 

	 2.4	 Rise in Interest Cost:

		  The rise in the interest cost will increase the 
cost of funds to a great extent and may impact 
profitability adversely as the debt is a major 
source of finance.

		  Company’s Perspective:

		  The Company is exploring various financial 
instruments to reduce the impact of rising interest 
rates. Further, with the increasing exports, your 
Company is availing export finance at competitive 
interest rates therefore minimizing the impact of 
rising interest rate.
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	 2.5	 Successful development of new products and 
service offerings on which the Company focus: 

		  The Company has been expanding the nature 
and scope of its engagements. The success of 
these new offerings is dependent, in part, upon 
continued demand for such products or services 
by its existing and new customers and its ability 
to meet this demand in a competitive and cost 
effective manner. 

		  Future growth of a number of Indian printing 
service providers like us is dependent on the 
growth of export of printed products/services 
like us in the developed countries, especially two 
key markets namely USA and UK and developing 
continent namely Africa.

		  Company’s Perspective:

		  The Company is building strong customer 
relationship and based on previous three years 
experience in the international market is quite 
confident in this regard.

	 2.6	 Competition form unorganized players: 

		  While the predominant business of the Company 
has been confined to Printing, where it has to face 
intense competition from unorganized players, 
the outlook for the industry is positive given the 
size of the opportunity.

		  Company’s Perspective:

		  The Company is confident that through a 
combination of powerful marketing strategies, 
innovative new products and value added 
services, the market would continue to grow 
strongly over the next several years.

3.	 Product Categories

	 All our product categories are mainly Education based 
and because of the growing importance of education 
all around the globe, your Company is confident of 
taking the fullest advantage of this situation.

	 Following are the various categories of the products 
namely : Scholastic Books, Children’s Colouring and 
Activity Books, Scientific, Technical and Medical Books, 
Trade Books, Digital Printing Books, Content Services 
and Fulfilment.

	 In the ensuing year, your Company continues 
to strategically focus it’s strength on usage of 
those business models which are more profitable, 
standardization of raw material SKU for volume 
benefits and reduction in inventory holding costs.

4.	 Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

	 The Company maintains a system of strict internal 
controls, including suitable monitoring procedures. 

Management Discussion & Analysis Report (Contd.)

The Company has a sound internal control system 
for pricing , contract management and finalization of 
purchases and sub-contracts, proper safeguarding of 
all its assets and other important functional areas. The 
internal control system is adequately supplemented 
by a program of internal audit to ensure that the 
business operations are conducted in adherence to 
laid down policies and procedures. Significant issues 
are brought to the attention of the Audit Committee 
of the Directors. The internal controls and internal 
audit existing in the Company are considered to be 
adequate vis-à-vis the business requirements.

5.	 Material developments in Human Resources/Industrial 
Relations front

	 The Company’s intellectual capital (Human Resource) 
represents its most valuable reserve and resource. The 
Company has formulated HR goals strategically with 
increasing presence across various business products 
and geographies. Its endeavour to increase the work 
force, collaborate with other functions to create the 
right working culture, inculcate right practices and 
foster proper work ethics, reflected in increased 
productivity.

	 Attracting qualified professionals and skilled labour 
is exceedingly critical. Recognising this as a potential 
challenge, Repro has placed special emphasis on the 
recruitment and training processes. 

	 The Company recruits professionals from the country’s 
reputed Institutions. It recruits experienced people 
for certain critical positions mainly through internal 
references, industry connections, advertisements and 
placement agencies.

6.	 Discussion on financial performance with respect to 
operational performance

	 Improving operational efficiencies through better 
processes and a great identification of the right 
markets and product mix that is suitable to the 
infrastructure has shown results. The increased top 
line is a testimony of the professional methodologies 
in execution and contract management adopted by 
your Company. 

	 Sales/Income from operations 

	 Sales/Income from operation increased from  
Rs. 15,091 Lacs in 2008 to Rs. 23,803 Lacs in 2009 
showing a growth of 57.72%. This is driven mainly on 
account of growth of export business. 

	 Other Income

	 Other income has reduced from Rs. 201 Lacs in 2008 
to Rs. 97 Lacs in 2009 on account of reduction in gain 
due to foreign exchange fluctuation in current year.
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	 Cost of Materials 
	 Cost of material was at Rs. 8,091 Lacs in 2008 as 

against Rs. 12,528 Lacs in 2009. Cost of material as a 
percentage to sales has decreased to 52.63% in 2009 
from 53.61% in 2008.

	 Employee emoluments

	 Salaries, wages and other employees benefits were  
Rs. 1,434 Lacs in 2008 as against Rs. 2,029 Lacs in 2009. 
As a percentage of sales it has decreased from 9.51% 
of sales in 2008 to 8.53% of sales in 2009. 

	 Operating and Other Expenses

	 Operating and other expenses amounted to 
Rs. 5,782 Lacs in 2009 as against Rs. 2,856 Lacs in 2008. 
The expenses as a percentage to sales has increased 
to 24.30% in 2009 from 18.93% in 2008. This is mainly 
because of foreign exchange fluctuation of Rs. 15.35 
crores.

	 Operating Profit (PBDIT)

	 PBDIT has reduced to 14.96% of sales in 2009 as 
against 19.30% of sales in 2008.

	 Interest and Finance Charges

	 The Financial Expenses has increased to Rs. 812 Lacs 
in 2009 from Rs. 428 Lacs in 2008 due to overall 
increase in interest rate scenario and increased level 
of business. 

	 Depreciation

	 The depreciation charged to revenue has increased to 
Rs. 795 Lacs in 2009 as against Rs. 638 Lacs in 2008 
mainly due to the setting up of the SEZ unit during 
this year. 

	 Profit before Tax (PBT)

	 As a result of the foregoing, PBT for the year 2008-09 
at Rs. 1,953 Lacs as against the previous year’s PBT of 
Rs. 1,847 Lacs.

	 Provision for Taxation

	 There is decrease in provision for current year tax i.e. 
from Rs. 290 Lacs in 2008 to Rs. Nil in 2009 as, for the 
tax of Rs. 32 Lacs payable under Minimum Alternate 
Tax (MAT), MAT credit entitlement is available.

	 Provision for deferred tax increased from Rs. (29) Lacs 
in 2008 to Rs. 276 Lacs in 2009.

	 There is increase in Fringe Benefit Tax i.e. from Rs. 32 
Lacs in 2008 to Rs. 55 Lacs in 2009.

	 It may please be noted that the statements in 
the Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
describing the Company’s objectives and predictions 
may be forward looking within the meaning of 
applicable rules and regulations. Actual results 
may differ materially from those either expressed or  
implied in the statement depending on circumstances.

Management Discussion & Analysis Report (Contd.)
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Auditors’ Report

To The Members of REPRO INDIA LIMITED

1.	 We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of 
Repro India Limited (‘the Company’) as at March 
31, 2009 and also the Profit and Loss account and 
the Cash Flow statement for the year ended on that 
date annexed thereto (all together referred to as 
‘financial statements’). These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Company’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit.

2.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in India. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material 
mis-statement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of 
Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, (‘the said 
Order’) we enclose in the Annexure a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the 
said Order.

4.	 Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to 
above, we report that:

	 i.		 We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit;

	 ii.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as appears from our examination of those 
books;

	 iii.	 The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are 
in agreement with the books of account;

	 iv.	 In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss 
Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this report comply with the accounting standards 
referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of 
the Companies Act, 1956.

	 v.	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors, as on March 31, 2009 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we 
report that none of the directors is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2009, from being appointed as 
a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) 
of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

	 vi.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, 
the said accounts give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India; 

		  a)	 in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2009; 

		  b)	 in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of 
the profit for the year ended on that date; 
and

		  c)	 in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Per VIJAY MANIAR

Partner

Membership No. 36738

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report 

[Referred to in paragraph [ 3 ] of our report of even 
date]

(i)  (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fi xed assets. 

 (b) Fixed assets have been physically verifi ed by 
the management during the year. However, in 
respect of furniture and fi xtures, offi  ce 
equipments and computers, reconciliation 
with the fi xed assets register is in progress. 
However, as informed by the management, no 
material discrepancies were identifi ed on such 
verifi cation. 

 (c)  There was no substantial disposal of fi xed assets 
during the year. 

(ii)  (a)  The management has conducted physical 
verifi cation of inventory at reasonable intervals 
during the year.

(b)  The procedures of physical verifi cation of 
inventory followed by the management are 
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business. 

(c)   The Company is maintaining proper records of 
inventory and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on physical verifi cation.

(iii)  (a)  As informed, the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured from/to companies, 
fi rms or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies 
Act, 1956. Accordingly, provisions of paragraphs 
4(iii) (b), (c), and (d) of the said Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

  (b)  As informed, the Company has taken unsecured 
loan from a company covered in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies 
Act, 1956. The maximum amount involved 
during the year was Rs. 7,500,000 and the year-
end balance of the said loan was Rs. NIL.

  (c)  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the rate of interest 
and other terms and conditions for such loan are 
not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

  (d) In respect of loans taken, repayment of the 
principal amount is as stipulated and payment 
of interest has been regular.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business, for 
the purchase of inventory and fi xed assets and for 
the sale of goods and services. During the course of 
our audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the 
internal control system in respect of these areas.

(v) (a) According to the information and explanations 
provided by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the particulars of contracts or 
arrangements referred to in Section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 that need to be entered 
into the register maintained under section 301 
have been so entered.

 (b)  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the transactions 
made in pursuance of such contracts or 
arrangements exceeding value of Rupees 
fi ve lakhs have been entered into during the 
fi nancial year at prices which are reasonable 
having regard to the prevailing market prices at 
the relevant time.

(vi)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public. 

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business.

(viii) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the 
Central Government has not prescribed maintenance 
of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) 
of section 209 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the 
products of the Company.

(ix) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, investor education and protection fund, 
or employees’ state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, cess have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities 
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases 
of depositing tax deducted at source.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, investor education 
and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, sales-
tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other 
undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, 
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

at the year-end, for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

 (c)  According to the records of the Company, there 
are no dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-
tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise 
duty and cess on account of any dispute. 

(x) The Company has no accumulated losses at the end 
of the fi nancial year and it has not incurred cash 
losses in the current and immediately preceding 
fi nancial year.

(xi)  Based on our audit procedures and as per the 
information and explanations given by the 
management, we are of the opinion that the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues 
to a fi nancial institution, bank or debenture holders. 

(xii)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on the documents and 
records produced to us, the Company has not 
granted loans and advances on the basis of security 
by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other 
securities.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or 
a nidhi/mutual benefi t fund/society. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the said Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or 
trading in shares, securities, debentures and other 
investments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
4(xiv) of the said Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not given any 
guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or 
fi nancial institutions.

(xvi) Based on information and explanations given to us 
by the management, term loans were applied for 
the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no 
funds raised on short-term basis have been used 
for long-term investment.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment of shares to parties or companies 
covered in the register maintained under Section 
301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(xix)  The Company did not have any outstanding 
debentures during the year.

(xx) The company has not raised money by public issue 
during the year.

(xxi)  Based upon the audit procedures performed for 
the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of 
the fi nancial statements and as per the information 
and explanations given by the management, we 
report that no fraud on or by the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of our 
audit.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Per VIJAY MANIAR

Partner
Membership No. 36738
Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2009

As per our Report of even date

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

per VIJAY MANIAR
Partner
Membership No. 36738

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SANJEEV VOHRA	 Managing Director

MUKESH DHRUVE	 Director

MADHAVI KULKARNI	 Company Secretary

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009

(All amounts in Rupees)

Schedule As at As at

No. March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
	 Share Capital A  104,791,490  104,791,490 
	 Reserves and Surplus B  990,883,018  858,585,168 

 1,095,674,508  963,376,658 
LOAN FUNDS
	 Secured Loans C  1,058,974,663  414,090,878 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY  131,466,012  103,916,012 
	 [Refer notes 1(l) and 10 of Schedule "S"]
TOTAL  2,286,115,183  1,481,383,548 

APPLICATIONS OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
	 Gross Block D  1,676,883,017  1,153,533,219 
	 Less : Accumulated depreciation and amortisation  446,019,039  381,232,322 
	 Net Block  1,230,863,978  772,300,897 
	 Capital Work in Progress (including advances)  78,510,467  84,376,784 

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
	 Inventories E  193,150,577  110,050,658 
	 Sundry Debtors F  914,825,147  493,064,171 
	 Cash and Bank Balances G  50,790,925  20,041,220 
	 Other Current Assets H  177,661  171,063 
	 Loans and Advances I  303,143,723  196,293,887 

 1,462,088,033  819,620,999 
LESS : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
	 Current Liabilities J  438,250,778  159,895,599 
	 Provisions K  47,096,517  35,019,533 

 485,347,295  194,915,132 
	 Net Current Assets  976,740,738  624,705,867 

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE L  –  – 
	 (to the extent not written off or adjusted)
TOTAL  2,286,115,183  1,481,383,548
Notes to Account S
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2009

(All amounts in Rupees)

Schedule  For the  For the 
No. year ended  

March 31, 2009
year ended  

March 31, 2008
INCOME 
	 Income from Operations M  2,380,271,576  1,512,825,590 
	 Less: Excise Duty  – 3,688,692

 2,380,271,576  1,509,136,898 
	 Other Income N  9,659,792  20,112,947 

 2,389,931,368  1,529,249,845 
EXPENDITURE
	 Cost of Material O  1,252,777,378  809,082,296 
	 Personnel Expenses P  202,913,578  143,368,092 
	 Operating and Other Expenses Q  578,216,437  285,560,671 
	 Financial Expenses R  81,199,108  42,833,853 
	 Depreciation & Amortisation D  79,508,639  63,752,166 

 2,194,615,140  1,344,597,078 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FOR THE YEAR  195,316,228  184,652,767 
	 (Add) /Less : 
	 Current Tax -(MAT Payable)  3,150,000  29,000,000 
	 Less : MAT Credit Entitlement  (3,150,000)  – 
	 Net Current Tax   – –
 	 Deferred Tax  27,550,000  (2,892,030)
 	 Fringe Benefit Tax  5,500,000  3,231,000 
 	 Wealth Tax  107,624 –
	 Taxation for Earlier Year  (3,042,287)  (230,923)
PROFIT AFTER TAX FOR THE YEAR  165,200,891  155,544,720 
	 Balance in Profit and Loss Account brought forward  467,885,201  348,526,496 
	 Profit available for appropriation  633,086,092  504,071,216 

APPROPRIATIONS
	 Transfer to General Reserve  16,520,089  11,665,854 
	 Proposed Dividend  26,197,873  20,958,298 
	 Tax on Dividend  4,452,328  3,561,863 

 47,170,290  36,186,015 
BALANCE CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET  585,915,802  467,885,201 

	 Earnings Per Share 	 - Basic 15.76 14.84 
 				    - Diluted 15.05 14.24 
	 Face Value Per Share 10.00 10.00 
	 [Refer note 9 to Schedule "S"]
Notes to Account		  S
				  

As per our Report of even date

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

per VIJAY MANIAR
Partner
Membership No. 36738

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SANJEEV VOHRA	 Managing Director

MUKESH DHRUVE	 Director

MADHAVI KULKARNI	 Company Secretary

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009



60 Repro India Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2009

(All amounts in Rupees)
 For the Year Ended

March 31, 2009 
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation and extraordinary items  195,316,228  184,652,767 

Adjustments for:
	 Depreciation & Amortisation  79,508,639  63,752,166 
	 Interest income  (6,437,576)  (2,848,883)
	 Exchange gain of prior year capitalised - reduced from reserve  (2,252,840)  – 
	 Adjustment for Exchange difference 21,128,886  1,038,409 
	 (Profit)/Loss on sale of assets (net)  7,526,279  1,487,728 
	 Sundry balance written off  (55,936)  (563,551)
	 Financial expenses  81,199,108  42,833,853 
	 Amortisation of miscellaneous expenditure  –  135,747 

 186,616,560  105,835,468 

Operating Profit before working capital change  381,932,788  290,488,235 
	 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (83,099,919)  41,890,944 
	 (Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances  (92,471,179)  (39,681,496)
	 (Increase)/Decrease in Sundry debtors  (375,490,918)  (28,225,541)
	 (Decrease)/Increase in Current liabilities and Provisions 271,424,750  (25,174,953)
	 (Increase)/Decrease in provision for Gratuity - AS 15  4,203,447  2,264,031 
	 (Increase)/Decrease in provision for leave encashment  1,166,599  227,604 

 (274,267,220)  (48,699,411)

Cash generated from operations  107,665,568  241,788,824 
	 Income taxes paid  (16,367,095)  (25,735,146)

Net Cash (used)/generated from operating activities  91,298,473  216,053,678 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

	 Purchase of fixed assets including capital work in progress (541,928,748)  (139,144,417)
	 Proceed from sale of assets 4,241,264  8,617,675 
	 Interest received  6,430,978  2,830,416 

Net Cash (used)/generated in investing activities  (531,256,506)  (127,696,326)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
	 Repayment of long-term Rupee Borrowings  (350,000)  (3,066,615)
	 (Decrease)/Increase in Working Capital Borrowings  281,554,602  31,224,899 
	 Proceeds from bank borrowings-foreign currency borrowings  288,676,256  – 
	 Repayment of long-term Borrowings –  (45,848,613)
	 Proceeds from Fixed Deposits  –  30,000 
	 Repayment of Fixed Deposits  –  (1,381,000)
	 Proceeds of loan from Finance Companies (net)  1,834,360  (2,174,614)
	 Interest Paid  (76,487,318)  (43,776,275)
	 Dividend Paid  (20,958,298)  (20,958,298)
	 Dividend tax  (3,561,863)  (3,561,863)

Net Cash (used)/generated in financing activities  470,707,738  (89,512,379)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  30,749,705  (1,155,027)

Cash and equivalents at beginning of the period  20,041,220  21,196,247 

Cash and equivalents at end of the period (Refer Schedule "G")  50,790,925  20,041,220 

As per our Report of even date

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

per VIJAY MANIAR
Partner
Membership No. 36738

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SANJEEV VOHRA	 Managing Director

MUKESH DHRUVE	 Director

MADHAVI KULKARNI	 Company Secretary

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009
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Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009

(All amounts in Rupees)
 As at  As at 

 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008 
SCHEDULE "A"

	 SHARE CAPITAL
	 AUTHORISED 
	 25,000,000 (Previous year 25,000,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each  250,000,000  250,000,000 

	 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
	 10,479,149 (Previous year 10,479,149) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
	 fully paid up 
	 Of the above -

 104,791,490  104,791,490 

	 4,335,012 Equity shares are allotted as fully paid up bonus shares
	 by capitalisation of profits
	 17,500 Equity shares are allotted as fully paid up pursuant to 
	 the scheme of amalgamation for consideration other than cash

 104,791,490  104,791,490 
SCHEDULE "B"

	 RESERVES AND SURPLUS 
	 (Refer Note 2 of Schedule "S")
	 Capital Reserve  124,467  124,467 
	 Investment Allowance Reserve (utilized)  492,597  492,597 
	 Securities Premium  356,091,984  356,091,984 
	 General Reserve
 	 As per last Balance Sheet 33,990,919  27,009,196 
 	 Add : Transferred from Profit & Loss Account  16,520,089  11,665,854 
 	 Less : Adjustment in respect of prior period AS-11  (2,252,840)  – 
 	 Less : Adjustment for employee benefits provision (Net of deferred tax)  –  (4,684,131)

 48,258,168  33,990,919 
	 Balance in Profit and Loss Account  585,915,802  467,885,201 

 990,883,018  858,585,168 
SCHEDULE "C"

	 SECURED LOANS
	 [Refer Note 5 to Schedule "S"]
	 Term Loans:
 	 From Banks/Institutions  – –
 	 Rupee loan  –  350,000 
	 [Repayable within one year Rs. NIL (Previous year Rs. 350,000)]
 	 Foreign Currency loan  356,650,000  24,454,244 
	 [Repayable within one year Rs. 44,581,250 (Previous year Rs. 24,454,244)]
	 Others:
	 Vehicle Loan  7,976,286  6,141,926 
	 Working Capital Loans from Banks  424,425,806  217,936, 297
	 Buyers Credit from Banks 269,922,571 165,208,411 

1,058,974,663 414,090,878 
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Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 (Contd.)
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Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 (Contd.)

(All amounts in Rupees)
 As at  As at 

 March 31, 2009  March 31, 2008 
SCHEDULE "E"
	 INVENTORIES
	 [For mode of valuation refer Note 1(f) to Schedule "S"]
	 Stores, Spares and Packing Materials  40,452,147  23,119,155 
	 [includes materials in transit of Rs. Nil (Previous Year - Rs. Nil)]
	 Raw Materials  125,035,283  80,329,838 
	 [includes materials in transit of Rs. 33,633,357 (Previous Year - Rs. Nil)]
	 Finished Goods  3,399,601  5,192,720 
	 Work in progress  24,263,546  1,408,945 

 193,150,577  110,050,658 
SCHEDULE " F"
	 SUNDRY DEBTORS
	 (Unsecured, Considered good)
	 Debt outstanding for a period exceeding six months  150,724,383  79,062,039 
	 Others debts  764,100,764  414,002,132 

 914,825,147  493,064,171 

SCHEDULE "G"
	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
	 Cash on Hand  662,693  588,477 
	 [Including stamps on hand Rs. 112,953 (Previous Year  Rs. 66,886)]
	 Balances with Scheduled Banks :
 		  in Current Accounts  7,436,841  10,792,020 
 		  as Margin Money in Fixed Deposit  42,691,391  8,660,723 

 50,790,925  20,041,220 
SCHEDULE "H"
	 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
	 Interest Receivable  177,661  171,063 

 177,661  171,063 
SCHEDULE "I"
	 LOANS AND ADVANCES
	 (Unsecured, Considered good)
	 Advance recoverable in cash  89,403,006  38,786,160 
	 or in kind or for value to be received (Refer Notes 13, 14 of Schedule "S")
	 Advances to suppliers  73,248,494  32,229,669 
	 Export Incentive receivable  74,725,912  98,440,578 
	 Deposits  45,476,344  20,926,169 
	 Advance Income Tax Paid (Net of Provision)  20,289,967  5,911,311 

 303,143,723  196,293,887 
SCHEDULE "J"
	 CURRENT LIABILITIES
	 Acceptances  120,373,480  1,911,400 
	 Sundry Creditors for Goods & Services  259,730,389  78,876,951 
	 (Refer Note 15 of Schedule "S" )
	 Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods  8,117,782  6,073,585 
	 Advances from customers  23,272,742  61,371,086 
	 Other Liabilities  17,871,831  7,490,701 
	 Unclaimed Dividend  888  – 
	 Interest accrued but not due  8,883,666  4,171,876 

  438,250,778  159,895,599 
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(All amounts in Rupees)
 As at  As at 

 March 31, 2009  March 31, 2008 
SCHEDULE "K"
 PROVISIONS
	 Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax (net of tax paid)  790,333  213,435 
	 Proposed Dividend  26,197,873  20,958,298 
	 Tax on Proposed Dividend  4,452,328  3,561,863 
	 Provision for Gratuity  13,528,272  9,324,825 
	 Provision for Leave Encashment  2,127,711  961,112 

 47,096,517  35,019,533 
SCHEDULE "L"
	 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
	 (to the extent not written off or adjusted)
 	  	 As per last Balance Sheet  –  135,747 
 	  	 Less : Written off during the year  –  135,747 

– –
SCHEDULE "M"
	 INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
	 Gross-Sales and Services  2,330,324,186  1,428,995,101 
	 Export Incentives  49,947,390  83,830,489 

 2,380,271,576  1,512,825,590 
SCHEDULE "N"
	 OTHER INCOME
	 Interest Income (Bank Deposit)  1,567,102  518,827 
	 [Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 367,287 (Previous Year Rs. 108,954)]
	 Interest on Income Tax Refund  3,488,162  1,300,019 
	 Interest Income (Others)  1,382,312  1,030,037 
	 [Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 285,613 (Previous Year Rs. 205,482)]
	 Insurance Claim Received  1,106,578  13,305 
	 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) –  15,595,629 
	 Bad Debts recovered and Other Sundry Balances written back (net)  2,083,993  563,551 
	 Miscellaneous Income  31,645  1,091,579 

 9,659,792  20,112,947 
SCHEDULE "O"
	 COST OF MATERIALS
	 Raw Materials Consumed:
	 Opening Stock  80,329,838  107,705,298 
	 Purchases of Raw Materials  1,179,956,654  695,840,882 
	 Less: Closing Stock  125,035,283  80,329,838 

 1,135,251,209  723,216,342 
	 Stores and Packing Material Consumed [net of Packing Income]  140,556,283  84,691,292 
	 (Refer Note 18 of Schedule "S")
	 (Increase)/Decrease In Stock
	 Opening Stock
 	  	 Finished Goods  3,224,088  4,359,216 
 	  	 Stock in Process  1,408,945  1,448,479 

 4,633,033  5,807,695 
	 Closing Stock
 	  	 Finished Goods  3,399,601  3,224,088 
 	  	 Stock in Process  24,263,546  1,408,945 

 27,663,147  4,633,033 
 (23,030,114)  1,174,662 

 1,252,777,378  809,082,296 

Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 (Contd.)
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(All amounts in Rupees)
 As at  As at 

 March 31, 2009  March 31, 2008 
SCHEDULE "P"
	 Personnel Expenses
	 (Refer Note 17 of Schedule "S")
	 Salaries, Wages and Bonus  176,647,182  122,076,201 
	 Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds  8,047,487  6,320,749 
	 Staff Welfare Expenses  12,147,130  10,348,291 
	 Gratuity Expenses  4,400,655  3,909,486 
	 Leave Encashment  1,671,124  713,365 

 202,913,578  143,368,092 
SCHEDULE "Q"
	 OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES
	 Power and Fuel  37,902,456  32,472,481 
	 Labour Charges  117,841,140  47,561,017 
	 Hire Charges  5,115,041  6,309,185 
	 Sales and Business Promotion  39,667,162  22,816,750 
	 Repairs and Maintenance:
		  on Buildings  1,139,180  2,885,640 
		  on Plant and Machinery  15,435,827  14,870,093 
		  on Others  16,009,115  9,125,390 

 32,584,122  26,881,123 
	 Auditors' Remuneration: (exclusive of service tax)
		  Audit Fees  600,000  1,445,233 
		  Tax Audit Fees –  50,000 
		  Other Matters  650,000  – 
		  Out of Pocket Expenses  362,714  28,815 

 1,612,714  1,524,048 
	 Rent, Rates and Taxes  28,151,646  21,016,775 
	 Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges  26,094,782  12,482,486 
	 Travelling and Conveyance (Refer Note 17 of Schedule "S")  34,671,448  25,919,443 
	 Transport and Courier Charges (net)  43,119,226  33,388,417 
	 Loading and unloading Expenses  6,696,589  3,403,660 
	 Telephone Charges  6,842,259  6,601,056 
	 Insurance Charges  5,274,652  3,697,337 
	 Royalty  4,763,480  10,355,690 
	 Director's Sitting fees  525,000  390,000 
	 Service Tax  –  9,209,542 
	 Loss on Sale of Assets (net)  7,526,279  1,487,728 
	 Artwork and Design Charge  4,557,090  2,464,159 
	 Donations  916,250  530,000 
	 Miscellaneous Expenses  20,814,153  16,914,030 
	 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net)  153,540,948  – 
	 Deferred Revenue Expenses written off  –  135,749 

 578,216,437  285,560,671 

SCHEDULE "R"
	 INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES
	 On Fixed Period Loans  7,232,685  4,964,977 
	 On Cash Credit/Overdraft Facilities  46,306,168  23,979,969 
	 Other Interest and Finance Charges  27,660,255  13,888,907

81,199,108 42,833,853

Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 (Contd.)
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Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 (Contd.)

SCHEDULE “S”

NOTES TO ACCOUNT

1. 	 Significant Accounting Policies

	 a. 	 Basis of Preparations of Financial Statements

		  The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects, in respects with the Notified 
accounting standard by Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on 
an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent 
with those used in the previous year.

	 b. 	 Use of estimates 

		  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations 
during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of 
current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

	 c. 	 Fixed Assets and Depreciation

		  Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises 
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to 
use. 

		  Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method as per the useful lives of the assets estimated by 
the management, which corresponds to the rate and in the manner prescribed under Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

		  Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or it’s estimated useful life whichever is 
lower.

		  Leasehold land is amortised over the primary period of the lease. Assets acquired on hire purchase/finance 
lease are generally depreciated over the period of useful life of assets on a straight-line basis unless there is 
no reasonable certainty that the ownership of the asset would be obtained at the end of the agreement term. 
Where there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership of the asset would be obtained at the end of the 
agreement term such assets are depreciated over the shorter of the contract term or the asset’s useful life in 
accordance with the Company’s normal depreciation policy.

	 d. 	 Impairment of assets

		  The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at 
the weighted average cost of capital.

	 e. 	 Intangibles

		  Software is amortized over its estimated useful life of six years.

	 f. 	 Inventories

		  i. 	 Raw materials, stores and spares and packing materials ascertained on FIFO basis are valued at lower of cost 
or net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories 
are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected 
to be sold at or above cost. Custom Duty on imported stock is lying at custom bonded warehouse is not 
provided pending decision on clearance under export incentive scheme. 

		  ii. 	 Stock in process and finished goods is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes 
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allocation of appropriate production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished 
goods includes excise duty wherever applicable. 

		  iii. 	 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 g. 	 Revenue recognition

		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

		  Sales of printed material and fulfillment product are recognized on transfer of property in goods and 
performance of service. Sales are inclusive of excise duty but net of trade discount and other applicable taxes. 
Export sales are net of freight expense and commission expense.

		  Export incentive principally comprises of duty drawback, duty entitlement pass book credit, excise duty rebate 
and other benefits available to the Company based on guidelines formulated for the respective schemes by 
the government authorities. These incentives are recognized as revenue on accrual basis to the extent it is 
probable that realization is certain.

	 h. 	 Barter Transactions

		  Barter transactions are recorded at fair value, being the value at which the transactions are agreed between 
the parties and comparable with similar transactions with other parties.

	 i.	 Foreign Currency Transactions

		  i. 	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount, the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

		  ii. 	 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate.

		  iii. 	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary 
items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in 
previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise. 
Exchange difference in respect of assets acquired from out of India before accounting period commencing 
on or after December 7, 2006 were capitalized as a part of fixed asset till March 31, 2009.

		  iv. 	 The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense 
or income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on 
cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as income or as expense for the year.

	 j. 	 Retirement Benefits

		  i. 	 Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation fund is a defined contribution 
scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions 
to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the 
respective trusts.

		  ii. 	 Provision for leave encashment, is based on actuarial valuation as on the Balance Sheet date. Gratuity 
liability is a defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

		  iii. 	 Short-term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long-term compensated 
absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected 
unit credit method.

		  iv. 	 Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Profit and Loss Account and are not deferred.

	 k. 	 Leases [including assets acquired under deferred payment credits]

			  Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental 
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the 
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minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments 
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of 
return.

		  Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased 
term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit 
and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

	 l.	  Taxation

		  Tax expense comprises of current, deferred and fringe benefit tax. Current income tax and fringe benefit tax is 
measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax 
Act. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

		  Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

		  At each Balance Sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes 
unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets 
can be realized.

	 m.	 Miscellaneous Expenditure [incurred upto March 31, 2004]

		  i. 	 Public issue expenses have been adjusted against the securities premium.

		  ii. 	 Expenses incurred for increasing the authorized share capital are amortized over a period of seven 		
years. 

	 n. 	 Employee Stock Option Plan

		  Measurement and disclosure of Employee Share Based Payment plans is done in accordance with SEBI 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and Guidance Note 
on Accounting for Employees’ Share based payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. The Company has adopted intrinsic value method for the valuation and accounting of the stock options 
as per SEBI Guidelines.

	 o. 	 Derivative Instruments

		  The Company uses forward contracts to hedge its risk associated with the foreign currency fluctuations. 

2.	 Change in the accounting policy

	 Upto March 31, 2008, the Company was charging off exchange differences arising on foreign currency monetary 
assets and liabilities to Profit and Loss Account. Pursuant to Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendments 
Rules, 2009, the Company has exercised the option of deferring the charge to the Profit and Loss Account arising 
on exchange differences, in respect of accounting periods commencing on or after December 7, 2006, on long-
term foreign currency monetary items (i.e. monetary assets or liabilities expressed in foreign currency and having 
a term of 12 months or more at the date of origination). As a result, such exchange differences so far as they 
relate to the acquisition of a depreciable capital asset have been adjusted with the cost of such asset and would 
be depreciated over the balance life of the asset, and in other cases, have been accumulated in Foreign Currency 
Monetary Item Translation Difference Account and would be amortized over the balance period of such long-term 
asset/liability but not beyond, accounting period ending on or before March 31, 2011.

	 In current year, such exchange differences, pertaining to accounting periods commencing on April 1, 2007 and 
ending on March 31, 2008 are transferred from General Reserve, to the extent they related to acquisition of 
depreciable capital assets are adjusted with the cost of such assets Rs. 3,412,876 (Gain) (net of tax Rs. 2,252,840). 
There are no amounts transferred to the Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account.

	 Had the Company continued to use the earlier basis of accounting for exchange differences arising on long-term 
foreign currency monetary items, the charge to the Profit and Loss Account before tax for the current period 

Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 (Contd.)
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would have been higher by Rs. 40,780,635, the net block of fixed assets would have been lower by Rs. 39,868,293 
and general reserve would have been lower by Rs. 42,121,133.

3. 	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 
Rs. 13,966,313 (Previous Year Rs. 14,340,421).

4. 	 Contingent liabilities

	 a. 	 Income tax demand in appeal/rectification of Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. 5,874,351). Against this demand the 
company has paid Rs. NIL (Previous year Rs. 5,874,351).

	 b. 	 Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Company Rs. 26,443,787 (Previous Year Rs. 17,182,615).

	 c.	 Invoices factored Rs. 3,020,583 (Previous Year Rs. 28,329,185).

	 d.	 Letter of Credit opened remain unutilized Rs. 124,075,226 (Previous Year Rs. 402,933).

	 e.	 Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts pertaining to supply of raw material Rs. 1,770,882 
(Previous Year Rs. 1,770,882) plus interest not quantified. 

5. 	 Particulars of security provided against secured loans

	 a. 	 Foreign Currency Term loans from Standard Chartered Bank are secured by pari passu first charge by way of 
hypothecation on all the movable fixed assets, both present and future, excluding assets exclusively charged 
to other lenders.

	 b. 	 Working Capital Facilities from bank(s) is/are secured by hypothecation of stock, entire book debts, receivables 
and other current assets of the Company both present and future ranking pari passu with all banks. The 
facility(ies) from State Bank of Travancore and ING Vysya Bank Ltd. are further secured by second charge on 
the fixed assets of the Company ranking pari passu with all banks.

	 c. 	 Vehicle Loans are secured by way of assets acquired under hire purchase agreements. 

6. 	 Segment information

	 (i)	 Primary Segment: 

		  The Company is engaged into business of ‘Commercial Printing’ and ‘IT Fulfillment’ and the business from 
‘IT Fulfillment’ was integrated with the business of printing and had re-designated its reportable segment 
as ‘Value Added Print Solutions’. Accordingly, the Company operates as “One Integrated Business of Value 
Added Print Solutions” and hence there are no separate reportable segments for the Company. 

	 (ii)	 Secondary Segment Information:

		  The Company’s operating divisions are managed from India. The principal geographical areas in which the 
Company operates based on location of customers are India and others.

Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 (Contd.)

(Amount in Rupees)
Countries Revenue by geographical 

market
Carrying amount of segment 

assets
Capital 

expenditure
India 998,724,940

(805,022,503)
    2,129,244,432
(1,364,154,608)

563,397,364
(136,802,451)

Africa 1,260,877,047
(513,609,088)

593,452,318 
(237,011,466)

 -
(-)

USA 41,943,134
(77,021,373)

23,227,592
(31,819,036)

-
(-)

UK 56,700,669
(57,649,112)

21,535,345 
(25,193,608)

-
(-)

Others 22,025,786
(154,144)

4,002,791 
(18,119,962)

-
(-)

Total    2,380,271,576 
(1,453,456,220)

2,771,462,478  
(1,676,298,680)

563,397,364
(136,802,451)

Figures in bracket indicate previous year numbers.
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7. 	 Related party disclosures under Accounting Standard 18 

	 a. 	 The following are the names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have 
occurred or not:

		  Name of the related party		  Nature of Relationship
		  Key Management Personnel	
		  Mr. Vinod Vohra		  Chairman
		  Mr. Sanjeev Vohra		  Managing Director
		  Mr. Rajeev Vohra		  Director
		  Mr. Dushyant Mehta		  Director
		  Mr. Mukesh Dhruve		  Director

		  Relatives of Key Management Personnel	
		  Mr. N.R. Mehta		  Brother of Mr. Dushyant Mehta
		  Mrs. Shobhana Mehta		  Wife of  Mr. N. R. Mehta
		  Miss. Sonam Vohra		  Daughter of Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
		  Mrs. Renu Sachdev		  Wife of Mr. Sanjeev Vohra

		  Enterprises significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel	
		  Quadrum Solutions Private Limited
		  Reproductions Private Limited (Formerly known as Repro Holdings)
		  Superior Prints Private Limited (Formerly known as Repro Finance)

	 b. 	 The following are the volume of transactions with related parties during the year and outstanding balances as 
at the year end disclosed in aggregate by type of related party:

(Amount in Rupees)
Name Key 

Management 
Personnel

Relative of Key 
Management 

Personnel

Enterprises Significantly 
Influenced by Key 

Management Personnel

Total

Remuneration     
Mr. Vinod Vohra
 

1,711,000 
(1,186,000)

 – 
(–)

 – 
(–)

1,711,000 
(1,186,000)

Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
 

6,861,300 
(1,336,300)

 – 
(–)

 – 
(–)

6,861,300
(1,336,300)

Mr. Rajeev Vohra
 

1,651,000 
(1,126,000)

 – 
(–)

 –
(–)

1,651,000 
(1,126,000)

Mr. Dushyant Mehta
 

– 
(200,000)

 – 
(–)

 – 
(–)

- 
(200,000)

Mr. Mukesh Dhruve
 

1,753,000 
(1,210,000)

 – 
(–)

 – 
(–)

1,753,000
(1,210,000)

Mr. N. R. Mehta
 

 – 
 (–)

133,336 
(400,008)

 – 
–

133,336 
(400,008)

Mrs. Shobhana Mehta
 

– 
 (–)

40,272 
(120,816)

 – 
(–)

40,272 
(120,816)

Mrs. Asha Dhruve
 

– 
 (–)

72,000 
(72,000)

– 
(–)

72,000 
(72,000)

Miss Sonam Vohra 480,000 – 480,000
TOTAL
 

11,976,300 
(5,058,300)

653,608 
(592,824)

– 
(–)

12,629,908
(5,651,124)
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Name

Key 
Management 

Personnel

Relative of Key 
Management 

Personnel

Enterprises Significantly 
Influenced by 

Key Management 
Personnel

Total

Rent   
Mrs. Renu Sachdev
 

 – 
 (–)

3,600,000 
(3,300,000)

 – 
(–)

3,600,000
(3,300,000)

TOTAL
 

– 
 (–)

3,600,000 
(3,300,000)

– 
(–)

3,600,000  
(3,300,000)

Artwork & Professional fees 

Quadrum Solutions Private 
Limited

 – 
 (–)

– 
 (–) 

 11,908,263 
(800,000)

 11,908,263
(800,000)

TOTAL
 

– 
 (–)

– 
 (–)

11,908,263
(800,000)

11,908,263
(800,000)

			   Figures in bracket indicate previous year numbers.

8. 		 Particulars of assets acquired under finance lease:
		 Finance leases – assets acquired under deferred payment credit [on or after April 1, 2001]

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As at March 31, 2009

Total up to 
the end of 

lease

Due not later 
than 1 year

Due later than 1 year 
and not later than 

5 years

Due later 
than 5 

years

Minimum lease payments 9,049,336 4,421,469 4,635,523 -

(6,953,865) (3,723,272) (3,230,593) (-)

Less: Unamortised finance charges 1,073,050 657,396 415,656 -

(811,939) (478,610) (333,329) (-)

Present value 7,976,286     3,764,073 4,219,867 -

(6,141,926)   (3,244,662) (2,897,264) (-)

Figures in bracket indicate previous year numbers.

	 Notes:

	 The following is the general description of significant clause of above finance leasing arrangement by the 
Company:

	 a. 	 During the period of lease, the Company cannot create without prior written consent of the lender any 
other debt nor any mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, charge, lien or encumbrance upon or in respect of 
hypothecated assets or any part thereof in any manner whatsoever in favour of any person, firm, company or 
bank.

	 b.	 The assets would belong to the Company solely and absolutely and would be free from any and all charges 
and encumbrances save and except that created in favour of the lender.

	 c.	 The aggregate carrying amount of assets acquired under lease [class of asset – vehicles] after April 1, 2001 is  
Rs. 18,576,752 as at March 31, 2009 (Previous Year Rs. 14,417,874).

	 Operating Lease

	 The Company has taken office premises, godowns and residential premises on operating lease. The lease term is 
for from one to five years. There is no escalation clause in the lease agreement. There are no restrictions imposed 
by lease arrangements.
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Particulars
Forward (Sell)

No. of contracts Amount in USD
(i)	 Against Exports 16 19,950,000

(40) (11,400,000)
(ii)	 Loan taken - (PCFC) 14 5,769,979

(–) (–)
(iii)	 Debtors - (PCFC) 26 981,893

(–) (–)

(Amount in Rupees)

Operating Lease March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Future minimum lease payments

Not later than one year 13,672,500 5,400,000

Later than one year and not later than five years 19,116,000 8,200,000

Later than five years – –

Total 32,788,500 13,600,000

Rent debited to Profit and Loss account 9,231,473 10,107,493

9. 	 Earnings per share
	 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2009

For the year ended  
March 31, 2008

Net profit for the year as per Profit and Loss Account considered as 
numerator for calculating earnings per share

165,200,891 155,544,720

Weighted average number of equity shares

- For Basic earning per share 10,479,149 10,479,149

- For Diluted earning per share 10,920,406 10,920,406

Nominal value per share 10 10

Earnings per share – Basic 15.76 14.84

			   – Diluted 15.05 14.24

Face Value Per Share 10.00 10.00

10. 	Following are the major components of deferred tax (asset/liability)
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As at  
April 1, 2008

Current year 
charge/(credit) 

As at  
March 31, 2009

Difference between book and tax base of fixed assets 113,160,265 27,001,760 140,162,025
Preliminary Expenses U/s 35D (4,408,225) 2,938,817 (1,469,408)
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment (4,911,748) 359,823 (4,551,925)
Deferred revenue expenditure claimed in tax and 
deferred in accounts

46,140 (46,140) –

Others 29,580 (2,704,260) (2,676,492)
Total 103,916,012 27,550,000 131,466,012

11. 	Disclosure in respect of derivative instruments as at March 31, 2009

	 (a) 	 Derivative instruments outstanding
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	 (b) 	 All the derivative instruments have been acquired for hedging purpose.

	 (c) 	 Foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments.

Particulars USD CHF GBP Euro SGD JPY Total Amount 
in INR

(i)	 Debtors – – 212,135 43,163 – – 18,369,001

(–) (–) (77,877) (88,619) (–) (–) (11,784,554)
(ii)	 Creditors – – – 284 – – 19,164

(324,256) (2,500) (–) (1,953) (–) (227,620) (13,260,696)
(iii)	 Loan taken 7,000,000 – – – – – 356,650,000

(611,815) (–) (–) (–) (–) (–) (24,454,244)
(iv)	 Buyers Credit – – – – – – –

(4,133,310) (–) (–) (–) (–) (–) (165,208,411)
(v)	 Cash & Bank balances – – – – – – –

(107,509) (–) (3,556) (–) (–) (–) (4,579,955)

	 (d) 	 Figures in bracket indicate previous year numbers.

12. 		 The Transport and Courier charges of Rs. 46,074,627 (Previous Year Rs. 33,388,417) are net of recovery of 
Rs. 2,955,401 (Previous Year Rs. 4,815,673). Packing Material Consumed of Rs. 5,383,584 (Previous Year  
Rs. 42,431,497) is net of packing income of Rs. 1,822,429 (Previous Year Rs. 1,658,385). Mailing charges of  
Rs. 5,563,219 (Previous Year Rs. 2,707,275) is net of recovery of Rs. 3,175,919 (Previous Year Rs. 3,171,157).

13. 		 Advances to employees include dues from officers of the Company Rs. 6,443,207 (Previous Year Rs. 39,32,000). 
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year in respect of such dues – Rs. 5,612,000 (Previous 
Year Rs. 3,944,159).

14. 		 In the opinion of the Board, current assets, loans and advances have a value of at least equal to the amounts 
shown in the Balance Sheet, if realized in the ordinary course of the business. The provision for all the known 
liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

15. 		 The information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such 
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The following suppliers 
are registered as Micro, Small, or Medium Enterprises as at March 31, 2009 in terms of provisions of ‘The Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’:

		  ID Technologies having an outstanding principal of Rs. Nil as at March 31, 2009 (Previous Year Rs. 49,117) and 
interest of Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil).

 
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars March 31, 
2009

March 31, 
2008

Principal amount & the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 
March 31, 2009 *

 NIL 49,117

Interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made  to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during the year 

 NIL  NIL

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but without 
adding the interest specified 

 NIL  NIL

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid  at the end of each accounting year; and  NIL  NIL
Interest remaining due & payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when 
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 NIL  NIL

* There is no interest which is payable as at the year end.
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16. 	 The gross block of fixed assets as at March 31, 2009 of vehicle include Rs. 33,268,239 (Previous Year Rs. 25,168,063) 
held in the names of employees for the beneficial interest of the Company.

17. 	 Personnel expenses exclude salary costs which have been capitalized during the year, aggregating to 
Rs. 19,536,906 (Previous Year Rs. 11,554,193) for implementation of the new ERP package. Travelling and 
Conveyance expenses exclude Rs. 6,319,362 (Previous Year Rs. 5,438,849) which have been capitalized towards 
new machines being purchased.

18. 	 Supplementary information
	 a. 	 Quantitative details of goods manufactured:
		  i. 	 Particulars of goods manufactured
			   l 	 Class of goods manufactured - Printed products include annual reports, calendars, house 

journals, magazines and other periodicals, IT books and other educational books, booklets and 
brochures, etc.

			   l	 The nature of the Company‘s operations is such that there is no known physical measures 
or standard classification for the saleable product because each product has different type. 
Consequently, quantitative information regarding production, turnover and opening and 
closing stocks of finished goods has not been given.

			   l	 The actual production of printed books during the year was 83,527,228 nos. (Previous Year 
72,274,269) and that of other printed material was 1,988,445 nos. (Previous Year 6,649,288). 
This has been certified by the Management and accepted by the Auditors being a technical 
manner.

			   l	 Sales include major sales of printed books 83,612,211 (Previous Year 72,290,487) valuing 
Rs. 2,149,989,472 (Previous Year Rs. 1,238,176,560) leaving balance sales of other printed and 
non printed material valuing Rs. 180,334,714 (Previous Year Rs. 215,279,660).

 		  ii. 	 Particulars of raw material consumed 
	

Particulars Unit
For the year

ended March 31, 2009
For the year

ended March 31, 2008
Quantity Value in Rupees Quantity Value in Rupees

Paper Kgs. 23,630,485 1,115,579,076 16,887,604       687,097,612
Floppies and CD’s Nos. – – 616,605 14,286,544
Inks Kgs. 136,623 25,233,458 128,920 23,776,494
Others 3,146,401 8,608,666

1,143,958,935 733,769,316
Sales tax set off 8,707,726 10,552,974
Total   1,135,251,209  723,216,342

		  iii. 	 Licensed capacity, installed capacity and production:
			   In view of the nature of the Company’s business, the production and installed capacity being variable 

are not ascertainable and not relevant to the volume of Company’s sales.

	 b. 	 Remuneration to directors
	 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2009

For the year ended 
March 31, 2008

Salary, allowances and benefits 6,802,000 4,834,000

Commission to Managing Director 5,000,000 –

Perquisites 174,300 224,300

Total 11,976,300 5,058,300
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Computation of net profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956
(Amount in Rupees)

Profit before Taxation 195,316,228
Add :- Depreciation as per accounts 79,508,639
	 Loss on Sales / Discarding of fixed assets 7,526,279
	 Managerial Remuneration 11,976,300
	 Rent paid for accommodation 3,600,000
Less :- Depreciation as per Section 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 79,508,639
Net profit for the year 218,418,810
Salaries Perquisites and Commission to Managing Director calculated @5% of the net 
profit

10,920,940

Less :- Salaries and perquisites of the Managing Director 1,687,000
	 Rent paid for accommodation 3,600,000
Commission payable 5,633,940
Actual commission paid to Managing Director 5,000,000

		  Since no commission was paid to directors in the previous year hence previous year’s figures are not given 
in computation of profit under Section 198 and Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956.

		  As the future liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company 
as a whole, the amount pertaining to the Directors is not ascertainable and therefore, not included above.

	 c. 	 Particulars of consumption of imported and indigenous raw materials, consumable stores and 
packing material:

Particulars For the year
ended March 31, 2009

For the year
ended March 31, 2008

Rupees % Rupees %
i.	 Raw materials:
	 Imported 355,964,215 31.06 189,943,244 25.89
	 Indigenous 787,994,720 68.94 543,826,072 74.11
Total     1,143,958,935 100.00 733,769,316 100.00
	 Less : Sales tax set off 87,077,26 10,552,974
Total 1,135,251,209 723,216,342
ii. 	 Consumable stores and packing 

materials:  #
	 Imported 18,915,877 13.46 12,012,558 14.18
	 Indigenous 121,640,406 86.54 72,678,734 85.82
Total 140,556,283 100.00 84,691,292 100.00

# Consumption of stores and packing materials above, is net of packing income of Rs. 1,822,429 (Previous 
Year Rs. 1,658,385)

	 d. 	 CIF value of imports
	 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2009

For the year ended  
March 31, 2008

Raw Material 364,580,588 182,133,837
Consumable stores and spare parts 27,871,352 10,061,209
Capital goods 217,618,665 10,209,039
Total 610,070,605 202,404,085
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	 e.	 Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)
	 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2009

For the year ended  
March 31, 2008

Travelling expenses [including Rs. 6,319,362 (Previous 
Year Rs. 1,279,019) capitalized as fixed assets]

14,186,865 6,449,245

Installation fees – capitalized – 4,144,025
Other expenses 3,043,800 8,241,269
Total 17,230,665 18,834,539

	 f. 	 Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual  basis)
		  (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2009

For the year ended  
March 31, 2008

FOB value of sales 1,381,546,636 648,433,717
Fulfillment Income and recovery expenses 16,071,560 22,585,426
Total 1,397,618,196 671,019,143

19. 		 Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) – Employee Benefits
(Amount in Rupees)

A)	 The Amounts recognized in respect of unfunded obligations March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
	 Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of leave 

liability
2,127,711 961,112

	 Amount recognized in Salary, Wages and Employee Benefits in the 
Profit and Loss Account in respect of leave liability

1,671,124 1,124,511

	 Principal Actuarial Assumptions at the Balance Sheet date
	 Discount rate 7.75% 8%
	 Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8% 8%
	 Future Salary escalation 5% 5%
	 Mortality Rate LIC (1994-96) 5% 5%
B)	 Defined Contribution Plan: 
	 Amount recognized as an expense  – Contribution to Provident 

Fund and in respect of Super annuation fund 6,319,157 4,774,986

		 C) 	 Defined benefit plans - As per actuarial valuation
			   Gratuity 	 (Amount in Rupees)

I Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 
Account

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

1 Current Service Cost 1,853,819 2,733,886

2 Interest Cost 1,020,986 896,814

3 Expected return on plan assets (142,471) (244,876)

4 Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses 1,668,321 523,662

Total expenses 4,400,655 3,909,486
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	 (Amount in Rupees)

II Net Assets (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the year 

end
15,359,681 11,020,150

2 Fair value of plan assets as at the year end 1,831,409 1,695,325
3 Funded status [Surplus/(Deficit] (13,528,272) (9,324,825)
4 Net assets/(Liability) as at the year end (13,528,272) (9,324,825)

III Change in Obligation during the year March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning 

of the year
11,020,150 10,011,859

2 Current Service Cost 1,853,819 2,733,886
3 Interest Cost 1,020,986 896,814
4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 1,688,025 448,743
5 Benefit Payments 223,299 (3,071,152)
6 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the 

year
15,359,681 11,020,150

IV Change in fair value of plan Assets during the year March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
1 Plan assets at the beginning of the year 1,695,325 3,072,603
2 Expected return on plan assets 142,471 244,876
3 Contribution by employer 197,208 1,523,917
4 Actual benefit paid (223,299) (3,072,152)
5 Actual Gains/(Losses) (1,668,321) (74,919)
6 Plan assets at the end of the year 1,831,409 1,695,325
7 Actual return on plan assets 162,175 169,957

V Actuarial Assumptions: March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
1 Discount Rate 7.75% 8%
2 Expected rate of return on plan assets 8% 8%
3 Mortality  Table LIC (1994-96) 

Ultimate
LIC (1994-96) 

Ultimate 
4 Salary Escalation  5%  5%

The planned assets fall under the category of insurer managed funds. These are managed by Life Insurance 
Corporation of India.
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20. 	 Employee Stock Option Plans:

	 The Company has provided Repro India Limited - Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2006 (“Repro ESOS 
2006”) to its employees. During the year ended March 31, 2009, the following scheme was in operation:

Particulars Repro ESOS 2006
Date of grant May 14, 2007
Date of Board Approval July 24, 2006
Date of Shareholder’s approval September 12, 2006
Number of options granted 500,000
Method of Settlement (Cash/Equity) Equity
Vesting Period 30% Over a period of 1 year 

30% Over a period of 2 years
40% Over a period of 3 years

Exercise Period 3 years from the date of vesting
Vesting Conditions Nil

The details of activity under the scheme have been summarized below:
	

Particulars

Repro ESOS 2006

Number of  
options

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (Rs.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 500,000 98.00
Granted during the year – –
Forfeited during the year – –
Exercised during the year – –
Expired during the year – –
Outstanding at the end of the year 500,000 98.00
Exercisable at the end of the year 150,000 98.00
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 4.23
Weighted average fair value of options granted 47.31

	 The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year i .e., March 31, 2009

	
Range of exercise 

prices
Number of options 

outstanding
Weighted average remaining 

contractual life of options (in years)
Weighted average 

exercise price
Rs. 98 500,000 4.23 Rs. 98

	 Stock Options granted  

	 Historical Volatility includes early years of the Company’s life; the Company expects the volatility of its share price 
to reduce as it matures.

	 Since there is no difference in the exercise price and the fair market value on the date of the grant, there is no 
impact on the employee compensation cost.

Schedules annexed to and forming Part of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 (Contd.)
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	 The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year was Rs. 47.31. The Black-Scholes valuation 
model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs:

Particulars March 31, 2009

Grant date May 14, 2007

Exercise price Rs. 98

Volatility 57%

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) in years 30% after one year

30% after two years

40% after three years

Average risk-free interest rate 8%

Dividend yield 1.59%

Option Fair Value Rs. 47.31

21. 	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our Report of even date

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

per VIJAY MANIAR
Partner
Membership No. 36738

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SANJEEV VOHRA	 Managing Director

MUKESH DHRUVE	 Director

MADHAVI KULKARNI	 Company Secretary

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009
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Balance Sheet Abstract

Statement Pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 
Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile
1.	 Registration Details

	 Registration No.	 State Code

	 Balance Sheet Date	

		  Date	 Month	 Year

2.	 Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

	 Public Issue	 Bonus Issue

	 Rights Issue	 Private Placement

3.	 Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

	 Total Liabilities	 Total Assets

	 Sources of Funds :

	 Paid-up Capital	 Reserves and Surplus

	 Secured Loans	 Unsecured Loans

	 Deferred Tax Liability

	 Application of Funds :

	 Net Fixed Assets	 Investment

	 Net Current Assets	 Misc. Expenditure

	 Accumulated Losses

4.	 Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

	 Turnover (Total Income)	 Total Expenditure

	 + 	 –	 Profit/(Loss) Before Tax	 + 	 –	 Profit (Loss) After Tax

	 (Please tick Appropriate box + for profit, - for loss)

	 Earning per Share (Rs.)	 Dividend Rate %
	 (on profit after taxes)

5.	 Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

	 Item Code No. (ITC Code)	 Product Description

	

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SANJEEV VOHRA	 Managing Director

MUKESH DHRUVE	 Director

MADHAVI KULKARNI	 Company Secretary

Mumbai, Dated : May 18, 2009
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Delhi
B-3/3, First Floor, Safdarjung Enclave, 
New Delhi – 110 029.
Tel: +91-9811544995 / 9312703187

Nigeria
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Tel : +234-2623269 / 776 44 94

UK
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THE CUSTOMER
Relying on Repro to get the
product to the end user

THE END USER
The final target

REPRO
The solid pillar that holds together
the customer and the end user
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